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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

9 December 2013 —
13 December 2013
(both days inclusive)
13 December 2013

Book-close Dates

Annual General Meeting

Book-close Dates 20 December 2013 —
27 December 2013
(both days inclusive)

Record Date for Final 27 December 2013

Dividend

Payment of Final Dividend 7 January 2014
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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I am pleased to present my report to the shareholders.
RESULTS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2013, the Group delivered solid
financial performance reporting a turnover of HK$124,504,000
(2012: HK$94,216,000) and a gross profit of HK$94,330,000 (2012:
HK$69,153,000), which represented an increase of 32% and 36%
respectively compared with last year. The gross profit margin was
76% (2012: 73%). These results were principally attributable to the
growth in rental income of investment properties and sales proceeds of
properties of the Group.

5




SE-CEDR SR | R EEARA A
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RESULTS (Continued)

In addition, the Group accounted for other income of HK$26,065,000
(2012: HK$27,468,000) that arose mainly from the imputed and
bank interest income and exchange gain; and an increase in fair value
of its investment properties in the sum of HK$87,395,000 (2012:
HK$59,156,000).

The profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
Company rose markedly by 45%, amounting to HK$123,166,000
(2012: HK$85,003,000), with basic earnings per share of HK$0.562
(2012: HK$0.388). Excluding the effect of fair-value change in
investment properties and related tax effect, the underlying net profit
for the year attributable to shareholders was HK$60,207,000 (2012:
HK$40,616,000).

Taking into account other comprehensive income of exchange
difference on translation to presentation currency, the total
comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of the Company
amounted to HK$163,682,000 (2012: HK$116,117,000).
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DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 2.5 Hong
Kong cents (2012: 2 Hong Kong cents) per share to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the register of members on
27 December 2013. An interim dividend of 2.5 Hong Kong cents per
share were paid to the shareholders of the Company during the year
which, in aggregate, gives total dividends for the year of 5 Hong Kong
cents per share. Subject to approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the warrants for the final
dividend are expected to be despatched to those entitled on or about 7
January 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year under review, the operating segments of the Group
comprised property rental and property sales in the mainland China.
The segment of property rental in Beijing and Shanghai remained
the key contributor of revenue and results of the Group, whereas the
segment of property sales in Beijing also improved revenue and results
for the year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The core business of investment properties of the Group, which were
quality offices in Pudong in Shanghai and a well-established mall
together with carparks in Chaoyang District in Beijing, experienced
a steady growth in rental during the year. The aggregate revenue
from property rental was HK$90,536,000 (2012: HK$80,031,000),
representing an increase of 13% as compared with last year. Property
rental revenue accounted for 73% (2012: 85%) of the total turnover of
the Group. The fair value of these investment properties appreciated
in the total amount of HK$87,395,000 (2012: HK$59,156,000) during
the year. As such, the segment results of property rental achieved a
profit of HK$158,084,000 (2012: HK$118,055,000), representing a
surge of 34% as compared with last year.

In Shanghai, leasing demand and net take-up remained vibrant in
the office market in Pudong due to limited new supply in the year.
The quality offices of the Group known as “Eton Place” was located
at the prominent financial area of Little Lujiazui in Pudong and it
attained a full occupancy rate and a steady increase in rental revenue.
In the year, the rental revenue amounted to HK$56,927,000 (2012:
HK$53,535,000), representing an increase of 6% compared with last

year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

In Beijing, the mid-end and mass-market retail business stayed active
in the well-established community mall of the Group known as
“Uptown Mall” which sustained high occupancy rates and a significant
growth in rental. The mall rental was in the sum of HK$33,609,000
(2012: HK$26,496,000), representing a leap of 27% as compared with
last year.

Supported by strong fundamental demand in the residential market
in Beijing, the Group boosted sales proceeds of residential units at
“Chaoyang Garden” of HK$33,968,000 (2012: HK$14,185,000),
which contributed to 27% (2012: 15%) of the total turnover of the
Group during the year and markedly increased by 139% as compared
with last year. Furthermore, the segment results of property sales
recorded a profit of HK$22,539,000 (2012: HK$10,722,000) and
soared by 110% as compared with last year.

In terms of asset performance, the Group revalued its investment
properties in Beijing and Shanghai and recognised appreciation in the
sum of HK$34,612,000 (2012: HK$12,273,000) and HK$52,783,000
(2012: HK$46,883,000) respectively in the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

With respect to the jointly controlled entity of the Company known
as Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”),
which holds the land use right of a piece of land located in Tung Kok
Tau, Nanshan District, Shenzhen (the “Land”), the Group has been
exploring different ways aimed at increasing the redevelopment value
of the Land, including possible official land rezoning and ancillary
facilities with a view to increasing the gross developable area and
saleable floor area of the Land.

At the same time, as the operation period of the joint venture of
Zhen Wabh is due to expire in January 2014, the Group has been
considering different options which includes a possible extension of
the joint venture if appropriate terms can be secured. The Group will
settle upon a strategy that it considers to be most appropriate in the
circumstances in terms of protecting and/or enhancing the interests of
the Group and its shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

The financial position of the Group remains sound and liquid, and
its financing and treasury policies are managed and controlled at
the corporate level and prudent manner during the year. The main
objective is to utilize the group funding efficiently and to manage the
financial risks effectively. At 30 June 2013, the equity attributable to
its owners amounted to HK$1,781,014,000 (2012: HK$1,626,861,000)
with net asset value per share of HK$8.12 (2012: HK$7.43). Total
unsecured and secured bank borrowings of the Group amounted to
about HK$205,718,000 (2012: HK$230,192,000), which were in Hong
Kong dollars and repayable within one year on floating rate basis.
As at 30 June 2013, the gearing ratio of the Group was 12% (2012:
14%) based on the total debt of the Group to its equity attributable to
owners of the Company. No significant exposure to foreign currency
fluctuations affected the Group in the year under review save for the
net exchange gain of HK$5,206,000 (2012: HK$4,616,000) and no
financial instruments were used for hedging purpose in the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Financial Resources and Liquidity

In the year under review, there was sufficient cashflow as generated
by rental revenue of investment properties in Shanghai and Beijing
as well as sales proceeds of properties in Beijing. As at 30 June
2013, the Group’s bank balance and cash stood at HK$218,433,000
(2012: HK$174,563,000), denominated primarily in renminbi
yuans. With sufficient cashflow, the Group maintained an un-
utilised credit facilities of HK$11,000,000 (2012: HK$11,000,000)
as working capital at floating interest rate as at 30 June 2013. As at
the end of the reporting period, the Group has net current liabilities
of HK$117,112,000 (2012: net current assets of HK$46,037,000),
which included mainly the bank loans due within one year of
HK$205,718,000 (2012: HK$24,474,000), and the Company will
arrange refinancing upon maturity.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2013, the Group pledged its properties with a total
carrying value of HK$789,655,000 (2012: HK$739,561,000), an
assignment of rental and sale proceeds from such properties and a
charge over shares in respect of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group to financial institutions as security against general banking
facilities granted to the Group, and also pledged certain of its bank
deposits in the sum of HK$8,668,000 (2012: HK$11,823,000) to
banks to secure home loans granted to the home buyers of property
project of the Group. As at the end of the reporting period, the Group
has given guarantees in respect of settlement of home loans provided
by banks to the home buyers of a property project in Beijing. As at 30
June 2013, the Group had given guarantees in respect of such home
loans of HK$30,354,000 (2012: HK$43,931,000). The Directors of
the Company consider that the fair values of these financial guarantee
contracts at their initial recognition and at the end of the reporting
period are insignificant on the basis of the low loan ratio.

PROSPECTS

Although economic growth is slowing down in China, domestic
demand is likely to keep growing on a steady path alongside with
official economic and financial reform to stabilise market sentiments
and steer the economy in China, thus bolstering leasing demand and
rental of office and retail space.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

In Beijing, leasing activities of mid-end and mass-market retailers are
expected to remain relatively stable, as they will be benefited from
rising disposable income and the growth in middle class, despite the
current official crackdown on high-end consumption. In the face of
the competitive and popular on-line retail, the Group will continue to
strategically fine-tune its tenant mix and brand portfolio in line with
shoppers’ need and lifestyle and to enhance shopping experience and
services at “Uptown Mall”, so as to evolve and reinforce its niche and
position for sustaining a high occupancy rate.

In Shanghai, it is anticipated that there is impending pressure of
influx of premier office supply and softening office demands due
to weakening business expectations, however, demand from small
to medium-sized private enterprises for office space will continue
positive. To sustain a high occupancy rate and steady recurring
revenue, the Group will strive for retention of existing tenants upon
lease renewals and focus on small to medium-sized tenants for new

leases at competitive rental strategies.

In Shenzhen, the booming financial, infrastructural and city
development, particularly the pilot financial and economic hub
in Qianhai and the superb residential development in Nanshan
District, will drive the redevelopment potential in the region, which
is integrating with Hong Kong for metropolitan development of the
Pearl River Delta Region. The Group will continue to safeguard
shareholders’ interests in respect of redevelopment plan of the Land
and pursue the best viable option upon the expiry of operation period
of Zhen Wah.

APPRECIATION

The Board of Directors would like to thank the shareholders, bankers,
customers, suppliers of the Group and others who have extended their
invaluable support to the Group and all staff of the Group for their
considerable contributions to the Group in the year.

TAN Harry Chua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2013
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The brief biographical details of each Director under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and updated information on
Directors pursuant to rule 13.51B (1) of the Listing Rules are as
follows:

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Harry Chua, aged 67, is the Chairman of the Company
nominated with effect from 8 February 2013 and was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company in 2009. He has also been
nominated as a member and the chairman of nomination committee
of the Board and a member of remuneration committee of the Board
since 8 February 2013. Mr. TAN is primarily responsible for overall
strategic leadership and direction of the Group. He has over 41 years
of senior managerial experience in various business including but not
limited to real estate, banking, hotel, brewery, airline and security. Mr.
TAN holds directorships in Eton Properties Philippines, Inc. as well
as PAL Holdings, Inc. (“PAL”), MacroAsia Corporation, Philippine
National Bank (“PNB”) and LT Group, Inc. (formerly Tanduay
Holdings, Inc.) (“LT Group”), which are all listed on The Philippine
Stock Exchange, Inc. (“PSE”). He holds a bachelor degree in chemical
engineering. He is related to several Executive Directors of the
Company being brother of Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank; uncle of Mr.
TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales and Mr. PASCUAL
Ramon Sy; and brother-in-law of Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming.

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, aged 64, is the Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director of the Company and was appointed in 2006.
He is responsible for overall performance of the Group. He is also a
member of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Board. He has over 27 years of experience in property development
and investment, banking and general management. Over the years, he
held senior positions as the chief executive officers of Eton Properties
(Holdings) Limited (“Eton”) in Hong Kong and Oceanic Bank, a
state chartered commercial bank in San Francisco and vice chairman
of Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited, a restricted
licensed bank in Hong Kong. He holds a bachelor degree in applied
science, a master degree in business administration and an honorary
doctorate in humane letters. He is related to other Executive Directors
of the Company being brother of Mr. TAN Harry Chua; uncle of Mr.
TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales and Mr. PASCUAL
Ramon Sy; and brother-in-law of Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, aged 47, is an Executive Director of the
Company and was appointed in 1997. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He has
about 22 years of experience in business management. Mr. TAN
holds directorships in PAL, MacroAsia Corporation, PNB and LT
Group, which are all listed on the PSE. And he is currently a director
of Philippine Airlines Inc., Eton Properties Philippines, Inc. as well
as the president and chief executive officer of an airline support and
logistics company in the Philippines. He has held senior executive
positions in various companies including tobacco and rhum industries
in the Philippines. He holds a master degree in executive master of
business and administration program as well as a bachelor degree in
civil engineering. He is related to other Executive Directors of the
Company being nephew of Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Dr. CHAN Wing
Kit, Frank and Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming; brother of Mr. TAN Michael
Gonzales; and brother-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.

Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, aged 47, is an Executive Director of the
Company as appointed with effect from 1 April 2013. He is in charge
of business development, investment and management of the Group.
He has over 20 years of experience in real estate, banking, hotel,
airline, milling and general management. Mr. TAN holds a number
of senior positions in various organisations and is the president and
director of LT Group and is a director of each of PAL, Victorias
Milling Company, Inc. and PNB, all of which are listed on the PSE.
Mr. TAN previously was the chairman of The Association of Young
Filipino-Chinese Entrepreneurs and is currently the vice president of
Federation of Filipino-Chinese Chambers of Commerce and Industry,
Inc. (“FFCCCI”). He holds a bachelor degree of applied science
in civil engineering from University of British Columbia. Mr. TAN
is related to other Executive Directors of the Company, being the
nephew of Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank and
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming; the brother of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao; and
brother-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming, aged 69, is an Executive Director of the
Company and was appointed in 1999. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He possesses
about 43 years of experience in real estate, brewery and services
industry. He is also senior executives of Eton and brewery companies
in mainland China. He holds a bachelor degree in agricultural and
water conservancy. He is related to other Executive Directors of the
Company being brother-in-law of Mr. TAN Harry Chua and Dr.
CHAN Wing Kit, Frank; and uncle of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr.
TAN Michael Gonzales and Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, aged 54, is an Executive Director of
the Company and was appointed in 2006. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He has over
31 years of experience in manufacturing, property development and
investment. He currently holds a senior executive position in Eton,
and serves as Directors in several companies engaging businesses
of real estate, manufacturing and logistics in mainland China, Hong
Kong and the Philippines. And he is an Independent Non-executive
Directors of United Pacific Industries Limited, which is listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He holds a bachelor degree
in economics. He is married to the niece of three other Executive
Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Dr. CHAN
Wing Kit, Frank and Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming; and brother-in-law of
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao and Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales.

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, aged 55, is an Executive Director of
the Company and was appointed in 2007. He is also the financial
controller of the Group. He holds a master degree in business
administration and has over 30 years of experience in the accounting
and finance field in Hong Kong and mainland China. Prior to joining
the Group in 1993, he worked at a major accounting firm and held
various senior accounting positions in property companies in Hong
Kong.

Mr. WONG Sai Tat, Patrick, aged 52, is an Executive Director of the
Company and was appointed in 2008. He is also the general manager
of China operations of the Group. He joined the Group in 1990. He is
an associate of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and obtained a master degree in business administration. He has 26
years of experience in the accounting field and development projects
of real estate in mainland China. Pursuant to the rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules and in accordance with the service contract entered
into between him and Dynamic Management Services Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, he is entitled to an annual
remuneration of about HK$1,379,000, as determined according to the
emolument policy as recommended by the remuneration committee of
the Board on the basis of his performance merit and competence.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth, aged 62, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and was appointed in 1994.
He is also the chairman both of audit committee and remuneration
committee, and is a member of nomination committee of the Board.
He is a veteran in the jewellery business in which he has over 41
years of working experience. He is managing a number of companies
engaged in diamond trading, jewellery manufacturing, wholesaling
and exports activities in Hong Kong and South East Asian countries.
Currently, he also serves as an independent non-executive director of
Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. SY Robin, aged 78, is an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company and was appointed in 1994. He is also a member of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Board. He is the president of Asian Shipping Corporation, a shipowner
engaged in shipping business in the Philippines. He is also a lawyer
and honorary president of FFCCCI. He holds senior executive
positions in some companies engaged in shipbuilding and repairing
business as well as heavy construction equipment trading field in the

Philippines.

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John, aged 63, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and was appointed in 2010. He is also a
member of audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board. He has about 43 years of experience in
banking and senior management. Currently, he also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Allied Banking Corporation
(Hong Kong) Limited. He holds doctor of philosophy in corporate
management, a master degree in business administration and a
bachelor degree in laws. He is an associate of the Institute of Financial
Accountants in United Kingdom, registered financial planner of
the Society of Registered Financial Planner in Hong Kong and in
mainland China as well as certified risk planner of The Institute of
Crisis and Risk Management in Hong Kong.

Mr. GO Patrick Lim, aged 55, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and was appointed on 8 February 2013. He
is also a member of audit committee of the Board. He is the chief
executive officer of Paramount Life & General Insurance Corporation.
He has over 25 years of experience in corporate finance and private/
public equity having worked for Credit Suisse First Boston, Bank
of America Asia Limited and Bankers Trust Company. Mr. GO is
also a member of World Presidents Organization in Singapore and
Philippines and a member of Singapore Institute of Directors. Mr.
GO holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics granted by University of
Pennsylvania, and a master degree in business administration granted
by University of Virginia. Mr. GO holds directorship of several listed
companies (other than the Company), including Pancake House Inc.,
which is listed on the PSE and Del Monte Pacific Limited, which is
listed on Singapore Exchange Limited and was a director of Allied
Banking Corporation, which has merged with PNB under the name of
PNB and listed on the PSE.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their
report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2013.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are property investment and development.

The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note

33 to the consolidated financial statements.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on page 33.

On 7 January 2013, a final dividend of 2 Hong Kong cents per share
was paid to the Company’s shareholders as a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2012.

An interim dividend of 2.5 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to
HK$5,485,000 was paid to the shareholders of the Company during the
year. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 2.5 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to HK$5,485,000
payable to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 27 December 2013 which,
in aggregate, will give a total of dividends for the year ended 30 June
2013 of 5 Hong Kong cents per share.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The increase in the fair value of the investment properties which has
been credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$87,395,000.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of the Group are set out in notes
15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital are set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
were the retained earnings of HK$14,407,000 as at 30 June 2013.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:
Executive Directors:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Chairman
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales
(appointed on 1 April 2013)
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
Mr. WONG Sai Tat
Mr. CHUA Domingo
(resigned on 1 April 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Dr. SY Robin
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
(appointed on 8 February 2013)
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Corporate
interests

Name of Director

BRI g Mr TAN Harry Chua e

B AR L Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
BREEE Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
REWEAE Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming
FIEM Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
LR8Pt Mt CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
it etk Mr. WONG Sai Tat

TR Rk Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
SY Robinff Dr. SY Robin

ML Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Bye-Laws 99 and 102 of the Company’s Bye-
Laws, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming, Dr. SY
Robin and Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John will retire by rotation, and Mr.
TAN Michael Gonzales and Mr. GO Patrick Lim will hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, and all being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed,
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Law 99, for a term of two years and they have confirmed their
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2013, the interests and short positions held by the
Directors or the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates in the shares of the Company (‘“Shares”), shares of any of
its associated corporations and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

AR CET TR Y H
(A7)
Number of issued ordinary Shares
of the Company (long position)

s e ]
il s

IR 2
(JR)

Personal interests
in underlying
Shares pursuant
to share options
(long position)
(Wit =)

(note 2)

HR A
CHATRAR
ARLAY
Total interests
as approximate
percentage

of issued

share capital
(Hit=)
(note 3)

LN ]

Personal
interests

Family
interests

Aggregate
interests

- - 668,000 1,500,000 2,168,000 0.99%
- - - 1,650,000 1,650,000 0.75%
- - - 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.68%
- - - 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.68%
- 80,000 - 1,500,000 1,580,000 0.72%
- - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.46%
- - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.46%
- - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.46%
- - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.46%
- 300,000 - 700,000 1,000,000 0.46%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes: 1. Mr. TAN Harry Chua was deemed or taken to be interested in 668,000

Shares beneficially owned by his spouse, Mrs. TAN Xing Hong Wei
Wang, for the purpose of the SFO.

2. The Directors’ interests in the underlying Shares are through share options
granted by the Company on 25 October 2011 under the 2001 Scheme,
details of which are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

3. The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage
of the total number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 219,403,681
Shares) as at 30 June 2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, none of the Directors,
the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, none
of the Directors, the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates had been granted or exercised any rights to subscribe for
any equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) during the
year ended 30 June 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as described in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and none
of the Directors of the Company, their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such rights during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors of the Company are considered to have interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr. TAN Lucio
Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming, Mr.
PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr. CHUA Domingo (resigned on 1 April
2013) held interests and/or directorship in companies engaged in the
businesses of property investment and development in Hong Kong
and/or the mainland China.

As the Board of Directors is independent from the Boards of the
said companies, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such

companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in continuing connected transactions below and
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, no contract of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had material interests,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a deed of mutual covenant (“DMC”) in respect of
“Eton Place” situated at No. 69 Dongfang Road, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China, JHE) 4 ( Lig) A
FRZyF] (Eton Property Management (Shanghai) Company Limited)
(the “Property Manager”), being a connected person of the Company
as defined under the Listing Rules, acts as the property manager to
manage Eton Place (including 182 office units held by the Group, the
“Property”). Property management fees of RMB28 per square meter
per month (the “Property Management Fees”) are payable by the
Group to the Property Manager on the same terms binding on other
owners of other parts of Eton Place calculated in accordance with
the DMC. The engagement of the Property Manager as set out in the
relevant property management contract was for a term of three years
from 1 October 2008 to 30 September 2011, which has been extended
for a term of three years from 1 October 2011 to 30 September 2014.
Details of the above transactions are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 June 2011. The Property Manager is indirectly
owned as to more than 50% in aggregate by certain Directors and
substantial shareholder of the Company, namely Dr. CHAN Wing Kit,
Frank, Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming and Mr.
CHUA Domingo together with their respectives associates.

These constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules, and the cap is the maximum amount of
Property Management Fees payable by the Group to the Property
Manager pursuant to the DMC in the sum of RMB4,000,000 for each
of the financial years ended 30 June 2012, 30 June 2013 and ending 30
June 2014.

On 2 February 2011, Dynamic Management Services Limited
(“DMSL”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a tenancy agreement (the “Previous Tenancy
Agreement”) in respect of the office premise of the Group in Hong
Kong situated at 17th Floor, Eton Tower, 8 Hysan Avenue, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong (the “Premises”) with First Touch Holdings Limited
(“First Touch”), indirectly owned as to more than 50% in aggregate
by certain Directors and substantial shareholder of the Company,
namely Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr.
CHEUNG Chi Ming and Mr. CHUA Domingo together with their
respective associates. Pursuant to the Previous Tenancy Agreement,
the Premises were rented at HK$131,456 per month payable in
advance, exclusive of government rates, management fee and air-
conditioning charges, and all other outgoings for a term of two years
from 19 December 2010 to 18 December 2012 with one-month rent-
free period at the end of the term. These constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules and
details of the above transactions are disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 2 February 2011.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

As the Previous Tenancy Agreement expired on 18 December
2012, DMSL entered into a new tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) in respect of the Premises with First Touch on 29
January 2013. Pursuant to the Tenancy Agreement, the Premises are
rented at HK$168,428 per month payable in advance, exclusive of
government rates, management fee and air-conditioning charges, and
all other outgoings for a term of two years from 19 December 2012
to 18 December 2014 with one-month rent-free period at the end of
the term. These constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules and details of the above transactions
are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29 January
2013.

Based on the monthly rent payable by DMSL to First Touch under
the Previous Tenancy Agreement, the Directors expected that the
total annual rental payable by DMSL to First Touch under the
Previous Tenancy Agreement did not exceed the maximum cap of
HK$1,000,000 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

Based on the monthly rent payable by DMSL to First Touch under the
Tenancy Agreement, the Directors expect that the total annual rent
payable by DMSL to First Touch under the Tenancy Agreement will
not exceed the maximum cap of HK$1,100,000, HK$2,100,000 and
HK$1,000,000 for each of the three financial years ending 30 June
2015.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company upon normal commercial terms and in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.



DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 27

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
HHREREE @

FEB R BB R SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

T ZE—ZAENH=1TH > gL E S e i As at 30 June 2013, so far as is known to any Director or chief

WA ANB AR WA RN TG executive(s) of the Company, persons (other than the Directors or

B % 1 HE 45 Bk A BLRC N R 5% 5 1] 5336 the chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short

e\ G B AE 2 B M NI A+ (48/A 6%  positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as

Fe ST ABRSN) W recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

ol
i§ 13 HEAY
TG Bt CEfTRAN
(R) HARSY
Number of
issued ordinary Total interests

Shares and as approximate

underlying percentage of

Shares  Total interests issued share

Capacity (long position)  (long position) capital
Wit#)

(note 5)

Dynamic Development Dynamic Development ~ F 5 B4 A Beneficial owner 89,321,279 89,321,279 40.71%
Corporation Corporation
Carnation Investments Inc. Carnation Investments Inc.  FAANZMEE 2 Trustee of aprivate 89,321,279 80,321,279 40.71%
EEINTT discretionary trust g 1
Bk £ Dr. TAN Lucio C. P25tz Founder of a private 89,321,279 93,701,279 “2.1%
TN discretionary trust
B4 WA A Beneficial owner 2,190,000
FHER gz Family interests ey 2,190,000
TAN Carmen K. % 1 Mrs. TAN Carmen K. FHEME R =) Family interests jues 91,511,279 93,701,279 £2.1%
F5 WA N Beneficial owner s 2,190,000
-2 TP Mr. CHUA Domingo A4 gem Corporate interests s 89,321,279 95,121,279 4335%

WA N m  Beneficial owner ey 5,800,000
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes: 1. Carnation Investments Inc. was taken to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares
in the Company as the entire issued share capital of Dynamic Development
Corporation was held by Carnation Investments Inc. as trustee for a private
discretionary trust.

2. Dr. TAN Lucio C. beneficially held 2,190,000 underlying Shares as
derivative interests. Dr. TAN, being the spouse of Mrs. TAN Carmen K.
who was interested in 2,190,000 underlying Shares as derivative interests,
was deemed or taken to be interested in such Shares as family interests in
which Mrs. TAN Carmen K. was interested under the SFO.

3. Mrs. TAN Carmen K. beneficially held 2,190,000 underlying Shares as
derivative interests. Mrs. TAN, being the spouse of Dr. TAN Lucio C.
who was interested in 89,321,279 Shares of the Company as a founder of
a private discretionary trust and 2,190,000 underlying Shares as derivative
interests, was deemed or taken to be interested in such Shares as family
interests in which Dr. TAN Lucio C. was interested under the SFO.

4. The corporate interests of Mr. CHUA Domingo were held through
Dynamic Development Corporation. Dynamic Development Corporation
is wholly-owned by Carnation Investments Inc. Mr. CHUA Domingo is
the sole shareholder and director of Carnation Investments Inc. Mr. CHUA
Domingo beneficially held 1,800,000 underlying Shares as derivative
interests.

5. The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage
of the total number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 219,403,681
Shares) as at 30 June 2013.

6. The references to 89,321,279 Shares in the Company in which Dr.
TAN Lucio C., Mrs. TAN Carmen K., Mr. CHUA Domingo, Dynamic
Development Corporation and Carnation Investments Inc. were interested
or taken to be interested relate to the same block of Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, no other person (other
than the Directors and the chief executive(s) of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

At 30 June 2013, the Group had below 80 employees in Hong Kong
and the mainland China at prevailing market remuneration with
employee benefits such as medical insurance, provident fund schemes

and share option schemes.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is recommended
by the remuneration committee of the Company on the basis of
the respective merits, responsibilities and duties, performance,
qualifications and competence taking into account of comparable
market level, operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives of the Board of Directors and relevant legal requirements,
provisions, guidelines and recommendations of regulatory bodies.

The emoluments of the respective Directors of the Company are
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company, having
regard to the operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives, individual performance and responsibility and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of the turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers in aggregate was less than 28% of
the total turnover of the Group and the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate was less
than 40% of the total cost of sales of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30 June 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 June
2013 with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules save for the derivation as disclosed in the “Corporate
Governance Report”. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 119 to 132.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 September 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
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B - MEROSEENT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

BEEEE8R 35/F One Pacific Place
R ES — 351 88 Queensway
Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 33 to 114, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2013,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

b@@zq&tud&, T;%MW

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 September 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aoy 4H 2 S At 2 T e A

BELZ-=FAH=1THIEFEE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

BRH
HE A

T

FAte e A
BEYEAFEHZ
5

T

5 2T

il A
S AT Z
Vi 157

IR L i S A1)
B A

A A I i A

H Al 2 T YA
B B E R R
Ham 2 HH -
HA RN
HE 5, 25 BH

A AR B A T WA AR

A4 5 i A B A
AN FIHEA N
I $ Je HE 4

A AF JE 2 TH A
AL
E/NEIE ZEDN
I 2 J5e HE 4

TR (BB )
HAR

%

Turnover 7
Direct costs

Gross profit
Other income 8
Increase in fair value of investment

properties 16
Administrative expenses
Selling expenses
Finance costs 9
Share of loss of a jointly

controlled entity

Profit before taxation 10
Taxation 12

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation
to presentation currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

Earnings per share (Hong Kong cents) 14
Basic

Diluted

Y- S - Sy
2013 2012
W T T T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
(=)
(restated)
124,504 94,216
(30,174) (25,063)
94,330 69,153
26,065 27,468
87,395 59,156
(23,456) (31,156)
(1,211) 931)
(5,088) (5,386)
(7,280) (6,725)
170,755 111,579
(45,143) (25,295)
125,612 86,284
41,295 31,670
166,907 117,954
123,166 85,003
2,446 1,281
125,612 86,284
163,682 116,117
3,225 1,837
166,907 117,954
56.2 38.8
54.1 38.5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A 6 B BEIR DL AR

) e AV e plE|
At 30 June 2013

it

NOTES

J#

e Salexid
AH=1H
As at
30.6.2013
W T
HKS$’000

30.6.2012
BWT T
HKS$°000
(R
(restated)

#

— g
tH—H
As at
1.7.2011
BT T
HK$°000
(RE5)
(restated)

Fe L B & Non-current Assets
L ERR FYE ] Property, plant and equipment 15 2,049 2,222 2,447
&Y E Investment properties 16 1,867,428 1,737,936 1,645,704
S ] 2 1 4 ) E A Interest in a jointly controlled entity 17 85,614 60,972 65,759
S [R] £ 1 A 7] R K Amount due from a jointly controlled
entity 17 236,927 246,393 228,154
2,192,018 2,047,523 1,942,064
R B % Current Assets
FrEYE Properties held for sale 18 19,503 28,883 32,736
B OE i B K Loan receivables 19 - _ _
B 5 Ko A 8 i B 3K Trade and other receivables 20 12,354 12,049 15,394
I 42 IR I R 3R Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder 20 960 938 920
BATAR A — B Bank deposits — pledged 30 8,668 11,823 60,734
MATHE R LB & Bank balances and cash 20 218,433 174,563 97,761
259,918 228,256 207,545
i B £ 1% Current Liabilities
B 5 Ko A B A R 3K Trade and other payables 21 62,201 57,964 58,565
Ol B % 4 Pre-sale deposits received 22 3,990 281 2,257
e A B IR Tax payable 105,121 99,500 97,977
SRAT B — Bank loans —
JEN — 4 N fE R due within one year 23 205,718 24,474 79,490
377,030 182,219 238,289
WHh (B4 ) & A Net Current (Liabilities) Assets (117,112) 46,037 (30,744)
W s B U £ A Total Assets less Current Liabilities 2,074,906 2,093,560 1,911,320
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
AR A BIR DLAE a0

RE_F—=FAA=+H
At 30 June 2013

J# j iy
SE =4 R -
M AA=ZFTH  RSA= +tH—H
As at As at
NOTES 30.6.2013 30.6.2012 1.7.2011
T T T W F T
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(R 31) (R E 51))
(restated) (restated)
A B fik B Capital and Reserves
e A Share capital 24 219,404 219,104 219,104
F2a Reserves 1,561,610 1,407,757 1,292,191

AN A AR Equity attributable to owners

of the Company 1,781,014 1,626,861 1,511,295

Ik P I8 B 2% Non-controlling interest 32,851 29,626 27,789

B 25 Total Equity 1,813,865 1,656,487 1,539,084
B B £1 45 Non-current Liabilities

SRAT B — Bank loans —

JEN— AR due after one year 23 - 205,718 160,210

I 2 B TE B 1K Deferred tax liabilities 25 261,041 231,355 212,026

261,041 437,073 372,236

2,074,906 2,093,560 1,911,320

BREN4E T2 42 5 M REC R %  The consolidated financial statements on pages 33 to 114 were
—Z=ZFNH T+ =HhEHEGHAZ LEH  approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
TUER - 3 By N A E AR EE September 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

to— A

HH HH TAN Harry Chua CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
Bl K i Bk A% DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ﬁﬁ;i—zﬁf\ﬁ =+ HILFEE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

AATHA B

Attributable to owners of the Company

YR (Lo
it it
Capital Share
redemption option
reserve reserve
#HT BHTT
HKS 000 HK$'000

Feh
.1

Non-
controlling
interest
EHTT
HKS 000

Rk BBkl S JE 4 Riodih Bl Red it #it

Share
capital
HKS000

Share
premium
EHTT
HKS'000

Other
reserve
EEFI
HKS'000
h#z)

(note b)

Retained
rofits

Translation
reserve
BEF
HKS 000

Special
reserve
#HT
HK$ 000
(W7

(note a)

Statutory
reserve

Vil o

Total
HKS'000

Total
BHFI
HKS'000 HKS 000
(H#5)

(note ¢)

REF——FLA—H  Alhiy201

(#03) (originally stated) 219,104 426,608 55018 1,644 309403 - 92451 - 509874 1614102 31359 1645461
FAEBGFHERIS 125 Adoption of amendments to

(3T (2 #28)  HKAS 12 (note ) - - E - (s611) - - SO0 (0807 G50 (10637)
RZF——FLA—-H  Alhiy20!

(HE) (restated) 219,104 426,608 55018 1,644 303,792 - 92451 - 412,678 1,511,295 20789 1539084
AR Proftfor the year - - - - - - - RO ] 85,003 1281 86,284
EREEZ %R  Exchange differences arising

on translation - - - - 31,114 - - - - 31,114 556 31,670
REFATBALHE  Tolal comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 31114 - - - 85,003 116,117 1837 117,954
BARASERG  Recogition of equity-setled

BERZMH share-based payments - - - - - 8213 - - - 813 - 8213
BAWE (Wit #13%)  Cashdividend frote 13) - - - - - - - - (8,764) (8,764) - (8.764)
REF— 2R 1A A0 Jue 2012

(&EF) (restated) 219,104 426,608 55018 1,644 334906 8213 92451 - 488917 1,626,861 29,626 1,656,487
KRR Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 123,166 123,166 246 125,612
BEsiEE 2 BR%E  Exchange differences arising

on translation - - - - 40516 - - - - 40516 9 41,295
REFATBALE  Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 40516 - - - 123,166 163,682 325 166,907
rERRERET Issue of shares upon exercise

e of share options 300 151 - - - (13) - - - 38 - 38
(4] Transfer = = = = = = = 6,80 (6,280) - - -
BARE (Wi #15%)  Cashdividends (note 13) - - - - - - - - (9.867) (9867) - (9.867)
RZB-ZHERAZFH AL30 June 2013 219404 426,759 55018 1,64 375420 8,100 92451 6,280 595936 1,781,014 3281 1,813,865

Mt Notes:

(F) A 4 3] 2 8 I8 4 T3 A5 B 2 AT 48 13 = 40 o i Bl 2 (a) The special reserve of the Group arose from the difference between the aggregate
[t g N ) R 2 RS~ B s Al — R R A SR amount of the then share capital, share premium, general reserve and retained
B Vs A 2 40 (B A 2N | i i i S TE BT R AT 2 IRy profits of the subsidiaries acquired, and the nominal amount of the Company’s
TE Mz s E L o shares issued for the acquisition in relation to a previous group reorganisation.

(Z) AEEZ HAhBE#HIIHAER B A A a] kHEE A (b) The other reserve of the Group represents deemed contributions from equity
ANzitsE s pE —Z2ENEASH=ETHILEE holders of the Company which arose from the difference between the fair value
A W B AT S HE A ACAE 2 AN P E (R B A5 i i B of consideration paid and payable and the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
BAG T TG EE - AR AE liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired through acquisition of the subsidiaries
A EMERN 2 T ELE o during the year ended 30 June 2006.

() 1R 15 B8 00 1 et 38 25 3 5 ol A 2 4208 1 A A 2 &) (c) The statutory reserve transferred from retained profits are required by relevant

AN RIEANE (7o B ) ) B Ja8 2 7] 2 A A
TR BE BAT R

People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) laws and regulations applicable to the
Company’s PRC subsidiary.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BEZZ-=FA=1THILFE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

el 3 A
2013 2012
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
BREEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
% L i i ) Profit before taxation 170,755 111,579
i Adjustments for:
FLE M A Interest income (18,732) (18,699)
P& Wy 20N - (E 1 Increase in fair value of investment properties (87,395) (59,156)
e Depreciation 193 326
HE W E - Loss on disposal/written off of property,
T w% A e 15 plant and equipment 152 4
JREE Wi B 3 o i R Impairment loss recognised in respect of
Z W AE 1R receivables _ 1,240
T8 ] JE S R 3K Reversal of impairment loss in respect of
2 H A receivables (633) (894)
P R AR Finance costs 5,088 5,386
DR 3 79 B Rl 2 A5 3 Share-based payments - 8,213
e EEH S T 2 584> #  Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity 7,280 6,725
5 3 2 T S0 A Unrealised exchange gain (5,156) (4,900)
R e T R Operating cash flows before movements in
B4 i working capital 71,552 49,824
R EY WD Decrease in properties held for sale 9,946 4,552
&y B At I AT B 2K 3k D Decrease in trade and other receivables 407 3,323
B Gy B HoAth JE A R 3 Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
Haom () 2,834 (1,780)
B i TE B e o () Increase (decrease) in pre-sale deposits received 3,644 (2,023)
oHKLEZHE Cash generated from operations 88,383 53,896
B AF o B ik PRC Tax paid (9,618) (7,752)
B A5 A B A 1 B PRC Land Appreciation Tax paid (8,219) (2,530)

KAKRBEH 2B 4%  NET CASH FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES 70,546 43,614

BEWEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
e Y FLE Interest received 3,910 4,763
A7 A SRAT HEHR A7 3K Placement of pledged bank deposits (72) (1,742)
AR [F] GRAT HEHE AT K Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 3,451 51,901
8 7 AT SR 3K Loan receivables repaid 343 119
EYE - B R Proceeds on disposal of property,

%A BT 15 3RIA plant and equipment 16 5
INEYE - R Purchase of property, plant and equipment a1 (61)

KABEEH 2B 4 EHH  NET CASH FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES 7,531 54,985




SE-CER-CHEEER | B EEARA A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
HREBRERER @

WEZE—=FANA=THILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

R B
fH R SR AT B RRRIA
C AR
E AR

AT Iy BT 45 5OR
T SRAT B EGUR
JR RS 1 G ) 2 B4 i

B4 B B4 %A 0 Im 5 18
ERZBERIESH

A BE 56 R 52 W) 2 B8 B

HERZBERIESH

PASRAT &5 R S B & KR

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank loans
Dividends paid

Interest paid

Proceeds from issue of shares
New bank loans raised

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash

SRR S
2013 2012
BT T T
HKS$’000 HK$000
(25,000) (86,250)
(9,867) (8,764)
(4,562) (4,944)
338 -

- 76,300
(39,091) (23,658)
38,986 74,941
174,563 97,761
4,884 1,861
218,433 174,563
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_LZ-=FAH=Z1HILFE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

AN E AR RE RE O 2 2 R
AR 7] H B 72 7 s kA 5 5 B
BARRAE (TBZER]) £ LT - AR
GRS Y Y &3-S F Tk 2]
AERP AR RBEEER]A -

ARF - HEEER AR > HER
Wi B o~ 7 2 SEH I W) S BOE R B E o

AR Z R NRWE o A5 7]
TS5 CH b B T RR R W R R
HE 2B MEEae MERIEL
25

AFEEN . AEECERATIHE
e AT A g (458 € at i & )
s 2 3 i ot 5 4 B R 2 AB AT -

FikgatEgg  HAhemigEA

(w7 A) Z 27l
gt R ST AR
(BRI A) i B

BUZZZTNE
—F Al
A EBUER
i)
Fi g et e 1298 R BLIH — M
(BRI A) B 2 1] g

M EREEN M TR k-
B9 (BRI A) SMEE MR

BT SR A > R AR A BE I T s B RS
i v ) 2 A AT A B A M AR AR
R T 47 BE A B 5 3R B RO DL B B
A7 G T 5 R TH Y 4% R AR 0 A R R
2 .

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate and Investors Information” in the
annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are property investment

and development.

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars as the Directors of the Company consider that Hong
Kong dollar is the most appropriate presentation currency in

view of its place of listing.

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle issued
in 2012

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

— Transfers of Financial Assets

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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For 7 B 5 M T A e )

BE-F-=FAA=1THILFE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

JRASAEBE N - A SR T U T
AP HERNEE 1258 (BRTA) [ 28 & B IH —
1B B E 2 g ) o IRBEZABFTA - w5t
SR S B IR A% IR i o w5 40 B
[HREYFEIUNTFHEEAFEZRE
W) 3 T5 R B AT A i B A ol lE o BR
FF BETE AR B AE K L 1 DL BB [m] o

A 45 T 8 P (RS RH  BE  3E
H A A e R RS 1298 (BT
) ApAlERCHEHAL A ZHE
7 R ¥R LIRS E SRS AL
EANRIME (TPE]) 2 HEYWHEL
B BRI JF BE R D FE T a% £
BT RS 2 KR R A 4 o T
TE 7 s & 5 HUSE 1298 (B AT A) BT 51
2 BRI o Bl B 1]

HOA A o R RS 1298 (BT
A) o AEEEE B E L EREY X
IR T 5 S A Y g (BB (1 A i
B AT ARRL ([ RERAB)
CHERFEBEY AT HEE 2 IEL
BLIA o M 1E > A 4R R R BB W 3K
NP EBEE) BB IARE - TR Y
W) BT A B T {925 2 66 TR T i ] i
I ARG AT EEH 2+
Mg (EBL -

Tk g at M 2B 1258 (BRTA) BB
FER > EHARLER —F— FRNH
—THE-F——FLtH —HZELE
B TE & A 4 B 3G i v 115,278,000 7T K&
# 85106,377,000 7T > b 75 AH HE 58 2 R
TR 2 PR B s R - R SO A B FF 2 R RE
Az AR o BLUY A o RE R B ET A
CHEFAEHEKE _F—=4FE~H=
T HIEEER - F— "4 A=1TH
1E 4F B 2 Bl TE 43 R 38 s ¥ 12,257,000
I M s 156,765,000 70 o M HEEEEL B &
—ZEANHAZTRIREER - FE—T
N H =4 B IR B 2 % A4 B
5 112,257,000 7C K 5 16,765,000 7G

l

\&

"/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Group has applied for the first time, the amendments to
HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets”, in
the current year. Under the amendments, investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model in accordance
with HKAS 40 “Investment Property” are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale for the purposes of measuring
deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain
circumstances.

The Group measures its investment properties using the fair
value model. As a result of the application of the amendments to
HKAS 12, the Directors of the Company reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties which are all situated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time, and that the presumption set out in the amendments to
HKAS 12 is not rebutted.

As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS
12, the Group recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of the investment properties taking into account the land
appreciation tax (“LAT”) and enterprise income tax (“EIT”)
payable upon sales of the investment properties. Previously,
the Group recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair value
of investment properties on the basis that the entire carrying
amounts of the properties were recovered through use and
did not recognise LAT on changes in fair value of investment
properties.

The amendments to HKAS 12 have been applied
retrospectively, resulting in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities
being increased by HK$115,278,000 and HK$106,377,000
as at 30 June 2012 and 1 July 2011 respectively, with the
corresponding adjustments recognised as a deduction of retained
profits, translation reserve, and non-controlling interest. In
addition, the application of the amendments has resulted in the
Group’s taxation for the years ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June
2012 being increased by HK$12,257,000 and HK$6,765,000
respectively and hence resulted in the profit for the years
ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 being decreased by
HK$12,257,000 and HK$6,765,000 respectively.
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The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income” introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Upon application of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s
“statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as a
“statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income”.
In addition, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax
on items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items of other
comprehensive income has been modified to reflect the changes.
Other than the above mentioned presentation changes, the
application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any
impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.

Various amendments to HKFRSs were issued in June 2012, the
title of which is Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle. The effective date of these amendments is annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
amendments to HKAS 1 in advance of the effective date.

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position as
at the beginning of the preceding period (third statement of
financial position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that
an entity is required to present a third statement of financial
position only when the retrospective application, restatement
or reclassification has a material effect on the information in
the third statement of financial position and that related notes
are not required to accompany the third statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (as part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
20092011 Cycle issued in June 2012) (Continued)

In the current year, the Group has applied the amendments to
HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets” for
the first time, which has resulted in an effect on the information
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 July
2011. In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group has therefore presented a third statement of financial
position as at 1 July 2011 without the related notes.

Summary of the effects of the above changes in accounting
policies

The effects of the changes in accounting policies described
above on the Group’s results and total comprehensive income
for the current and preceding years by line items are as follows:

BEAH =T HILEE
Year ended 30 June
TR =4

—m
2012

BT o
HKS$’000

2013
#W T
HK$°000

Increase in taxation and decrease

Wb in profit for the year 12,257 6,765
A B A2 5 W T S Decrease in exchange differences arising
R D on translation to presentation currency 2,893 2,136
ETL O R Decrease in total comprehensive income 15,150 8,901
A A BE i ) JE A D Decrease in profit for the year
attributable to:
ENUNEIE? SN Owners of the Company 11,849 6,554
I 2 A 25 Non-controlling interest 408 211
12,257 6,765
A THT WSO AL AL D Decrease in total comprehensive income
attributable to:
ENUNEIE? SN Owners of the Company 14,645 8,617
I 2 B B 1 Non-controlling interest 505 284
15,150 8,901
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (as part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 2012) (Continued)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in accounting
policies (Continued)

The effects of the changes in accounting policies described
above on the financial positions of the Group as at the end of
the immediately preceding financial year, i.e. 30 June 2012, is as
follows:

iy B m i

S S (WA) —FE—4F

ANAH=1H P ANA=1H
Increase

As at (decrease) As at

30.6.2012 adjustments 30.6.2012

7T T 7T T BT o

HK3$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
(W131) (R HEF)
(originally (restated)
stated)

IE JIE B TH B S Deferred tax liabilities 116,077 115,278 231,355
2 B i | Retained profits 592,667 (103,750) 488,917
[ 58 5t fh5 Translation reserve 342,580 (7,674) 334,906
IF 1 B 4 Non-controlling interest 33,480 (3,854) 29,626

WE 2 ]2 & 7 R E Total effects on equity and
P23k net assets 968,727 (115,278) 853,449
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (as part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 2012) (Continued)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in accounting
policies (Continued)

The effects of the changes in accounting policies described
above on the financial positions of the Group as at the beginning

H) MBI RWZ 8T - of the comparative year, i.e. 1 July 2011, is as follows:
iy B m %
—E 5 (WY) —F -
tH—H i B +tH—H
Increase
As at (decrease) As at
1.7.2011 adjustments 1.7.2011
BT T T T W T
HK3$°000 HK3$°000 HK$°000
(w1%1) (RH5)
(originally (restated)
stated)
I 3 B TH A Deferred tax liabilities 105,649 106,377 212,026
2 B i | Retained profits 509,874 (97,196) 412,678
[ 50, f5F A Translation reserve 309,403 (5,611) 303,792
I 72 I HE A Non-controlling interest 31,359 (3,570) 27,789
HE 2 % 7 N Total effects on equity and
2R B net assets 850,636 (106,377) 744,259

A B b SO At g St UK 2 S B AR 4R
A AF BE RO 1 4R T 4 R AR I i
B ZBBWME

The effects of changes in accounting policies above on the
Group’s basic and diluted earnings per share for the current and
prior years are as follows:

BRI RN 2 ®
Impact on basic
earnings per share
BEAA=ZTHILSEE
Year ended 30 June

HiB@uanzys
Impact on diluted
earnings per share

BEAA=ZTHILAEE

Year ended 30 June

—e-ok %% “R-=f —F—f
2013 2012 2013 2012
Al Al B il Al

HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents

o 58 i Figures before adjustments 61.6 41.8 59.3 41.5
2 E A v & eI Adjustments arising from change
951298 (55T 4) &5 inaccounting policy in relation

BSR4 ) T 7 AR to application of amendments
2 to HKAS 12 (5.4) (3.0) (5.2) (3.0)
i B 15 B Figures after adjustments 56.2 38.8 54.1 385
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The Group has not early adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and

HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle except for
amendments to HKAS 1!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities!

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures?

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities: Transition Guidance!

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments?

Consolidated Financial
Statements!
Joint Arrangements!

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities!

Fair Value Measurement!

Employee Benefits!

Separate Financial Statements!

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures!

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?
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Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets?
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and

Continuation of Hedge
Accounting?
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine!

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 are
described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — Int 12 “Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to
deal with complex scenarios.
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HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures” and
HK(SIC) — Int 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers”. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control
should be classified. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on
the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements.
In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets
and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures
under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities
under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method
of accounting or proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than
those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance
on the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating
to the transitional guidance, will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for financial year ending
30 June 2014. The application of these five standards is not
expected to have significant impact on amounts reported but will
result in more extensive disclosures in the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and
disclosures about, fair value measurements, and replaces those
requirements previously included in various HKFRS. The
scope of HKFRS 13 is broad and applies to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which
other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified
circumstances. HKFRS 13 contains a new definition for ‘fair
value’ and defines fair value as the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market conditions. A fair
value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit
price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13

includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKEFRS 13 is effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
1 July 2013. The Directors anticipate that the application of the
new standard will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group but may result in more extensive

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interest in a subsidiary is identified separately
from the Group’s equity therein.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance (effective from 1 July 2010
onwards).

A joint venture arrangement that involves the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturer has joint control over
the economic activity of the entity is referred to as a jointly

controlled entity.

The results and assets and liabilities of a jointly controlled entity
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an
investment in a jointly controlled entity is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the jointly controlled
entity. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

The financial statements of jointly controlled entities used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions

and events in similar circumstances.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly controlled entity.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity
of the Group, profits or losses resulting from the transactions
with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the jointly controlled entity that are not related to the Group.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in

profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as income in the period in which they are earned.

In the event that lease incentives are granted to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as assets. The
aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental income on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are diminished.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of a lease including both
land and building elements as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.
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To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises the property interest in
leasehold land and development costs including attributable

borrowing costs capitalised.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from the “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
a jointly controlled entity, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items

carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the group entity with
functional currency of Renminbi are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interest as appropriate).

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits plans in
Hong Kong and the PRC and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables. Loans
and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including amount due from a jointly controlled entity, loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder, bank deposits and bank balances)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or
. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or
. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loan receivables and trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amounts are reduced through the use of
allowance accounts. Changes in the carrying amounts of the
allowance accounts are recognised in profit or loss. When loan
receivables and trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
accounts. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
bank loans) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of
obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance

with the revenue recognition policy.
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the following conditions
are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties, which
is when the construction of relevant properties has been
completed, upon delivery, and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the properties are

sold;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transaction will flow to the Group; and
. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the

transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to
meeting all the above criteria for revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Others

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the period in
which they are earned.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for

on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A contingent asset is not recognised until the realisation
of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not

contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Share options granted to employees and consultants providing

similar services

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted and vested at the grant
date is expensed as share-based payment expenses immediately
on the date of grant, with a corresponding increase in share

option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following is the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies and that has the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a
result, the Group has recognised the deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of investment properties as the Group is subject to

LAT and EIT on disposal of its investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group recognises as allowance for doubtful debts based on
an assessment of the recoverability of loan receivables and trade
and other receivables.

Allowances are applied to loan receivables and trade and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of doubtful debts requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the actual cash flows relating to loan receivables and
trade and other receivables are different from the previous
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of loan
receivables, trade and other receivables and the doubtful debts
expense. As at 30 June 2013, the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables and loan receivables are HK$12,354,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$3,787,000) (2012:
HK$12,049,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$14,778,000) and nil (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$1,914,000) (2012: nil (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$2,211,000)) respectively.

Provision for Land Appreciation Tax and Enterprise Income
Tax

The provision for LAT and EIT is based upon the management’s
estimate of the deductibility of the costs incurred for the
development and sales of the subject properties where the actual
deductibility relating to the costs incurred are different from the
amount estimated, such difference will result in an over/under
provision in the carrying amounts of tax payables and taxation
charge for the year.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loans as disclosed in note 23, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the Directors of the
Company review annual budgets taking into account the
provision of funding. Based on the operating budgets, the
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital and balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

—®—-=4  E— 4
2013 2012
W T T or
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
4l A Financial assets
DL 6 AR FHE 2 K Loans and receivables at
T M A HR AR (B 6 B 4 amortised cost (including cash
Je B4 S5 {H) and cash equivalents) 474,467 443,434
A 3R Financial liabilities
DL B LA 50 2 Bl Liabilities at amortised cost 242,856 265,573

67
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The Group’s major financial instruments include amount
due from a jointly controlled entity, loan receivables,
trade and other receivables, amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder, bank deposits and balances,
trade and other payables and bank loans. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

Management monitors and manages the financial risks
relating to the Group through internal risk assessment
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of
risks.

These financial risks include market risk (including
interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
these kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks from the prior year.

(i) Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rates and
changes in foreign exchange rate.

Interest rate risk analysis

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable-rate bank loans and short-
term bank deposits and balances amounting to
HK$205,718,000 (2012: HK$230,192,000) and
HK$227,101,000 (2012: HK$186,386,000),
respectively. The interest rate risk of bank deposits
and bank balance are considered insignificant as the
bank deposits are substantially short-term deposits
and fluctuation in interest rate of bank balances is
limited. The variable-rate bank loans with original
maturity instalments range from one to three years.
An increase in interest rates would increase interest
expenses. The Group currently does not have
interest rate hedging policy, however, management
monitors interest rate exposure on dynamic basis
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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(i)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for non-derivative instruments, excluding bank
deposits and balances, at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate bank loans, the analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis points
(2012: 100 basis points) increase or a 25 basis
points (2012: 25 basis points) decrease is used
as it represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2012:
100 basis points) higher or 25 basis points (2012:
25 basis points) lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended
30 June 2013 would decrease by HK$2,057,000
or increase by HK$514,000 (profit of 2012
would decrease by HK$2,302,000 or increase
by HK$575,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s net exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowings.

Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures
to exchange rate fluctuation arise. The Group
currently does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge against its exposure to currency risk. The
management manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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6. ZRTH 4)

(&) 4B Bg 45 I H B B BOOR (A7)

G) WK (A7)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

W b (A Currency risk (Continued)
AEBUINEFIE 2 BB &E The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign
EREWAR(EEERER currency denominated monetary assets and
A7 8830 A ot B MR T E a0 monetary liabilities (mainly include bank loans) at
T the reporting date are as follows:
e St TR TR
2013 2012
YT BT T
HKS$°000 HK3°000
¥E Assets
(T ) Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”) 1,820 1,542
Fa (R4 United States dollars (“US$”) 2,323 3,683
Hofs ([ Hem% ) Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 55 210
i Liabilities
T HKS$ 207,389 232,371
S 1 I B B SRR S T Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
R T R N BRI R B S RE The following table indicates the approximate
S 4 BHRT fE S ) T A change in the Group’s profit or loss in response
A AL 8 14 s ) SR 18K to reasonably possible changes in the foreign

SEE) > A B I PR 3 A HE S
R 2 HRE -

R BE 43 M B 85 DA AN ST
B2 M AGEREERWEHEE > I
A A SR R R L B DL e B
BZS%( T — T 5%)
BE) o NFER(H) EHER
N EE MR AR
W 14 50 5% RF 2 s R (T D)
B A SR Y
SN RMEE5S%(—F—
A 5%) E > RILKE g A HY
Yot F) A 46 [R] R AR I S 2 o

exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% (2012: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A (negative) positive number below indicates a
(decrease) increase in profit where HK$, US$ and
GBP strengthens against RMB for 5%. For a 5%
(2012: 5%) weakening of HKS, US$ and GBP
against the RMB, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the period.
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6. jzﬁﬂ{j: ﬂ (7&) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(&) i B8 4% BIL H B % BOOR (A

~—

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
@ () ()  Market risk (Continued)
S I i R S A T (A Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued)
3 ¥ ) o 1 5
Effect on profit or loss
SR =4 AR
2013 2012
BT T T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
s HK$ (10,278) (11,542)
x& Us$ 116 184
e GBP 3 10
Gi) 1R (ii) ~ Credit risk
e e VA = B = D As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s maximum
ALE [ F 22 5 7 R RE B AT 3 exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
AT B A 4R T 4 4t B 25 9 R T loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
5| 358 %5 s 18 1 oK A5 &R obligation by the counterparties and financial
Bk A guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:
. &5 A BB IR B R A . the carrying amount of the respective
T RR AR B 4 Rl recognised financial assets as stated in the
G MRWAE s & consolidated statement of financial position;
and
. A B 5 5527 TH A BT 4 0 the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
A B AR to financial guarantees issued by the Group as
W5 48 IR 2 AR AR disclosed in note 27.
ST A E RS R o A In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
SHEHECZE/NHEA of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
TR A B A A S determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
AP A T At B AR T 1Y other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
S o DLE R £R TR A S e i up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
] g A 2 AR 5 o WA > AR addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
9] 7 2% 52 O R At 1 of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
i TH 2 W] e [ SRR > DAREE R period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
LAl ) 2 BROBE R R are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
W) 2 W AE e AR A o A the Directors of the Company consider that the
FoOANFERRAARED Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

e B R © B A -
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@) 7B (FE)

F 7 52 5 364 7 B R R A B
R B FP A 1S E 1 AR
B AR 2 SRAT B A B
BRAT - WBE S0 E R R
B A IR -

A7 Bl [ 42 ) 2 ] G % FF
PR Kk > #E7% IE HL
BRUL > AR A EHBBE
HEBAR -

A 4 ] 4 B = b 3ok £
R o BR1E &R 4
A UL B K b A A
7 4R o) Sl A ey F At K £
A E R o B 5 R
KEFEREHE D HERF
oI

ENEC i NG 2
R SRAT A AE RIS R - 5%
T 48 B KR 1E LA BB Y
Ry VAR ES
B A I70% o & B R
30 T o B A 2 948 O
e 5% 42 4 i SR AT T B SR
7% B4 22 1 R R R % L HE
AT AT A S 2 F o 78 A5 W
T o A AE [ A] DA 5 o]
B2 o Ht > 5 HE R A
PR A 42 (o] 12 (AL 1R 1T 5| 20
AT AT 48 2% ¥ W] B[R] o

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies or
state-owned banks in the PRC.

With respect to the amounts due from a jointly
controlled entity and a non-controlling shareholder,
having considered their financial standings, the
Directors of the Company are of the view that the
credit risk is limited.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is in the PRC. Other than
concentration of credit risk on liquid funds and by
geographical location, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spread across diverse counterparties.

The Group has provided guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the
properties for an amount up to 70% of the purchase
price of the individual property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the
period of guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
loan and any interest accrued thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to resell the
repossessed properties. Therefore, management
considers it would recover any loss incurred arising
from the guarantee to the Group.
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(i) 9% B & KR

BE_FZF-=4~NA=+
HIEAFE R . KEFERE &
fif ¥ 1 4 3 ¥117,112,000
gt EEAFEHER —F N
B9 Y R AT B B AT B
TH J 8 5 B H A R A IR
43 Al F #s #205,718,000 7T
# %105,121,000 T K i W
62,201,000 JC > A% 23 A i
D) B P AR A ) B
3 BB B Ry PEAE A -
JE HA BT R A (TR ) >
D e O s 4 [ i mT 78 L 2 ot
o A AR o

wOR RO OR . A 4 E Al
B ORI R E B A
261,000,000 G > A B F 2 £
7 11,000,000 JC o & HE JE
2 18 B A E A R A A ]
A RATRLE » R A AR
I 5195 24 ] Je A 2 30 1 WA S
£ o

NRFIIALEE IR S
il £ 155 90 % 2 E BB DL o
%2 DA G ] e LR 2
BT 2 L ARAB R R
Z ARG BB 4 i AR o

7% 2% [7] IRf 6 45 F1LE R A 4 Bl
e  BEMBRE T
AR KRB B A
AL ERB KRS BE
R AT R R R (T H SRR
B 1) i HE S 2 F B 2 i
MR U AR -

(iii)

Liquidity risk

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group
has net current liabilities of approximately
HKS$117,112,000, which include mainly the
bank loans due within one year, tax payable and
trade and other payable of HK$205,718,000,
HKS$105,121,000 and HK$62,201,000 respectively.
The Directors of the Company closely monitor
the cash flows of the Group and, upon maturity of
the bank loans, would arrange renewal, deferral or
refinancing, where necessary, to enable the Group

to carry on its operations in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the available
banking facilities of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$261,000,000, which was
unutilised to the extent of approximately
HK$11,000,000. Taking into account of the
internally generated funds and the available banking
facilities, the management considered that the
Group will be able to meet its financial obligation

when they fall due.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest period on which the Group can
be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from the
weighted average interest rate by reference to the
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (the “HIBOR”)
of the Group’s variable-rate financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period.
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6. W H #) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(Z) 4xmh s By 45 B H B2 B BOSKR (745 (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
(i) 3B B £ R (A (iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

R-F—-—HERFE-Z=ZF
ANA=TH > AREEB T
W B 2 SRR e s 9 E ) B
Ao SRAT R AR H A I A7 A
<5 Pl B B 00 9 4 A
R/ GETE O

As at 30 June 2012 and 2013, the Group does not
have term loan with repayment on demand clause.
The maturity dates for bank borrowings and other
non-derivative financial liabilities is prepared based
on the scheduled repayment dates.

it B B A Liquidity risk tables

WHFS
GES

Weighted

F-2k

85 B M AR 5%
E e Cud TIES
iH R4

Rk

85 MM iR 5k
RATE —F B %
HH R RA

2013

Trade and other payables
Bank loans - variable rate *
Financial guarantee contracts

012

Trade and other payables
Bank loans - variable rate *
Financial guarantee contracts

-2y

%

Weighted
average
interest rate

4%

o/
/0

A 4 R EE BT S
A ST 49 )R AR 3R ST 35
F) [R] ZE 45 2 1 1.8% (=% —
TR R ESFE N E061%E

1.8%) °

average
interest rate
%

HERIH,
Pt =N AWBAE A=
—~MA ik R
On
demand or Total ~ Carrying
less than 3 months undiscounted ~ amount at
1 month months to 1 year 1-2years  cash flows 30.6.2013
#YTE BT BWTL #WFTL EWTL #FTI
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
11,163 1,343 14,132 - 37,138 37,138
356 6,986 202,511 - 209,853 205,718
30,354 - - - 30,354 -
41873 8,829 226,643 - 277,345 242,856

HESLE
SR =fiA AHH RS

—fil A EfF WEAE WEREHE

On
demand or Total Carrying
less than 3 months undiscounted amount at
i months to | year 2-Syears  cashflows  30.6.2012
BETT  BETT EETT BETT  BETT  EFTT
HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000
10,867 1,425 23,089 - - 35,381 35,381
399 7074 21,658 209,850 - 238981 230,192
43931 - - - - 43931 -
55,197 8,499 44747 209,850 - 318,293 205,573

* For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings, weighted

average interest rate represents the weighted average of
HIBOR plus 1.8% (2012: HIBOR plus 0.61% to 1.8%).
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(i) T H 2B ()

bt 4 HE PR B OB AR
B REBRNZHEFR
fE R > A 42 I 9% h el 7 2 5
AF 2= B R BROE B9 R W
oo MIBEWARR T
A% 4 B 2 AR K AT RE S 5 1%
h e SCASHAE Al I o SR
B EHE 2L B FEHER
RAE A AT REVE T S B o A2
5 ¥ T 154 O 1 £/ 69 B85 e
WoE ol Z AR B AR > AT
% Y& PRI AT RETE & 3K o

Q01 SR T 8 A 4 G A B L 2
e 31 R il E 1) M) A (ELAFAE
=R QMR T AN E
At < AT I g AR A AL

CHMEEREMARZ A TER
5 3 A PR A 2 B A A NI 4 e B
Bl& i B0 b o

ANFEFERR - REESMHIR
TH A 1% © i 8 A B IR 2 & L
FE B <5 Pl 4 B KL AR R F (A
# -

(iii)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow.

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities

recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated financial

statements approximate to their corresponding fair values.
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BEBESBER

B T oY R IR KA oy BUR B AR
WA ARG (B E BB RERE)
O 2 $09 B0RHEE PR ) S IR R i 4
f9 4y € B FE H

E i RO R ROk LT R YE iy
mag e AEMMYEREHFERG
&AL L R A SR A B K
fEH o W) 38 89 8 0 S AL A A 4 R
ERH Y EHE -

A 45 B 52 T 7 i B s i R RIS 8 B
BLAE > 2k DLW A i 2L 007 B R e )

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of performance focused on
the location of the properties for property rental and property
sales.

The property rental segment includes property leasing operation
in the PRC. The Group’s investment properties portfolio, which
mainly consists of offices, shopping mall and carparks, are
located in Shanghai and Beijing. The property sales segment
includes sales of the Group’s trading properties in Beijing.

These divisions, property rental and property sales analysed
based on distinct geographical locations, are the basis on which

By SEAH 5 R W) 28 B 2 0 BB R
CONs LE-VES

A S5 A A AR T 2 WK i M S R AR
] B A Y A TR

the Group reports its segment information under HKFRS 8.

(a) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment for the year:

LES IV
Property rental

LB

Property sales

i L x BR
Beijing Shanghai Beijing Consolidated
“F-Ck “Z-"F “F-ZE “Z-"F "k “Z-"F “F-2F “Z-F
2013 2012 013 2012 2013 2012 013 2012
EWTL  ENTT BWFTL BFTL BFFL EFTL EWTL EFTX
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$’000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
MEBA SEGMENT REVENUE
BEH TURNOVER
HibE External sales 33,609 26496 56927 53535 33,968 14,185 124,504 94216
MRES SEGMENT RESULT 57,846 30517 100,238 87,538 22,539 10,722 180,623 128777
FAELMIA  Unallocated other income 23,348 23037
FARAT L Unallocated corporate expenses (21,348) (28324)
MEMA Finance costs (5,088) (5.386)
HEEHATZ  Share of loss of a jointly
ERn controlled entity 7280 (6725)
W L 0 i A Profit before taxation 1755 111579

B8 B 2 & wFBUR B B E
563 JE T A 48 [ A & s O A
6] o 43 JH S ARAE 45 70 JUIT iR B 2
i A > A A S B S AT B
A~ SRAT AR 3 R EE A
A Kz Bt FLE A ~ Bl R
A T SR #E i o B 2 S i
UL TGt 2> B B R B AT Al R B 1) 2
HERERZAREEL -

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment result represents the profit earned from each
segment without the allocation of central administration
costs, bank interest income, imputed interest income
on amount due from a jointly controlled entity, finance
costs and share of result of a jointly controlled entity.
This is the measure reported to the Board of Directors
for the purposes of resources allocation and performance

assessment.
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7. BEBERMBER ) 7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(&) ¥t kA (b) Segment assets and liabilities

BTV LEL L

Property rental Property sales

£ L ) wa

Beijing Shanghai Beijing Consolidated
o R LI e e S e e L S

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
#YTL  ENTL T EETT EWTL ENTT BETL ENTI
HEKS'000  HKSO000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000

(&EF)
(restated)
i ASSETS
HEERE Segment assets 669,157 619320 1205542 1126745 25,139 35607 1899838 1781672
SERPEHATHES  Tnterest in a jointly controlled entity 85,614 60972
SR AR RS Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity 236,927 246,393
AAEATEE  Unallocated corporate assets 09557 186742
GRERAE Consolidated total assets 2451936 22757719
Al LIABILITIES
AR Segment liabilties 5,195 4708 9315 21,716 20,54 15608 55,044 4803
FABARARE  Unallocated corporate liabilities 583027 571060
GRARMH Consolidated total labilities 638071 619292
Ry YRR R R L E For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
R4 and allocating resources between segments:
—  BRIEFEEES A AR - SER — all assets are allocated to operating segments other
PEG 2 7 KK~ SRATAERK than interest in a jointly controlled entity, amount
SRAT 45 B R B 4 DL R HoAh due from a jointly controlled entity, bank deposits,
F &S o REBERE TG4 T bank balances and cash and other corporate assets;
MESENE G & and
— BRI E G B A REAT M K — all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
— WA BB A | 2 A -~ fE other than amount due to a related company
IBLIE ~ SRAT B~ IRAERL included in trade and other payables, tax payable,
TH A R R A 7 A RS bank loans, deferred tax liabilities and other
2 AT A RE S corporate liabilities.

K o
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

7. BEBEERIBER @) 7.

(W) Jofib 2 BUER ©

Other segment information

LT
Property rental

73 L 73

Beijing Shanghai Beijing Segment Total Unallocated Consolidated
e St ot St X st St it ST it St S SRt e St S S
2013 2013 2 2013 2 2013 0 2013 2012 2013
#HTL EWTLE #NTL #HTL _YFL EETC BEFL
HEKS 000 HEKS'000 HKS'000 HEKS 000 HEKS'000 HKS 000 HEKS000

LES L

Property sales

A AR B

HKS$'000

AFEEHEAE  Amoutsincluded in the
EHIMEEER  measure of segment resultor
vkt segment assets and liabilities
KA Capital expenditures - - - - m 2 n 2 4 40 1 1
ik Depreciaton - = - = 146 258 16 28 q & 1% 36
B EORE Tmpairment loss (reversed)
HERR B recognised in respect of
e receivables, net - - - 0 (633) 134 (633) 46 - - (633) 346
REMEATEL  Tnorease in fair value of
s invesment proprts i 1227 578 4383 - = $7305 59,156 - = 87,95 59,156
(7)) b3R5 % (d) Geographical information
AL B EINEF 2 EE All of the Group’s turnover from external customers are
BT AOL B HE R AR) o located in the PRC (other than Hong Kong).
i/ = W A AP | B R VI T < The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
FEMRTH(E 0T non-current assets analysed by the geographical area in
which the assets are located:
Ik ¥4 B ¢ 7 YR i
Carrying amount of
non-current assets
e S
2013
YT
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
PR (FHRAN) PRC (other than Hong Kong) 1,869,380 1,740,073
AL bk JE B AN The Group’s non-current assets above exclude financial
AT H RARERIHE E (WF) - instruments and deferred tax assets, if any.
() Hh A 7 42 18 A 4 B — R B A A A (¢)  The Group does not have major customers as no single

A5 B B A 10% 1 1 SE R > D
FEEF o

customer contributes more than 10% of the Group’s
turnover.



DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 79

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR BA IR TE B 5 )

WEZE—=FANA=THILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

8. ML A 8. OTHER INCOME
e St B4
2013 2012
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
HAb e AL - Included in other income are:
SEAT AL B LA Bank interest income 3,910 4,763
R A& Exchange gain, net 5,206 4,616
At R SR R 2 AR ET Imputed interest income on other
B E U A receivables 82 131
I [ 2 il 8 7 KR Imputed interest income on amount due
s FLE d A from a jointly controlled entity 14,740 13,805
9. HhE A 9. FINANCE COSTS
=4 ZE— T4
2013 2012
BT 7T or
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
R IAE N R BEE Interest on bank borrowings wholly
SRAT 15 B B repayable within five years 5,088 5,386
10. B BE 1l e A 10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

e St TR — TR
2013 2012

#W T i T e
HK$’000 HKS$'000

s B A 5 A 2 0B (REA) Profit before taxation has been arrived

NI at after charging (crediting):

JPRE WA i (R s 4R (4% ) Impairment loss (reversed) recognised

TEFR - TFHE in respect of receivables, net (633) 346
1% B Hil P 5 Auditor’s remuneration 1,391 1,433
g Depreciation 193 326
e B - X Loss on disposal/written off of property,

%A s 48 plant and equipment 152 4
17 5 A T R 5 S Cost of inventories recognised as expense 9,820 4,543
WAERIEEEEZ Operating lease rentals in respect of

KEMEHE office premises and staff quarters 2,129 1,996

B T RA (O EL3E LAy £ % Staff costs (excluding share-based
W2 ATk M A48 23R B 5% payments and including Directors’

11 () JH 2 45 remuneration shown in note 11(a)) 13,269 10,485
DBy 5 L A 2 A5 3K Share-based payments - 8,213
JL[R] 428 4 28 W 22 v B AR Share of PRC income tax of a jointly

BT 7 (B8 & 7R 2L R controlled entity (included in share

PE 7 2 48 4 ) of loss of a jointly controlled entity) 710 710
L WA B i 8 7 L B 4 Net operating lease rentals received and

i receivable

"B EMHE Gross rents from investment properties (96,236) (82,083)

W AW E L Less: Direct expenses from

BT investment properties 18,383 19,262

(77,853) (62,821)
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11. #E3 K g B4 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

(W) medeml 4 (€))

- Sy S
2013 2012
T T
HKS$'000

#W T
HK$°000

A4 Directors’ fees
PATHES Executive 1,840 1,220
ML IE AT E Independent Non-executive 1,200 460
Al P 4 Other emoluments
(FATHEF) (Executive Directors)
Hr 4 e H At AR F Salaries and other benefits 1,693 1,498
B AR A w3 4 Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme 58 53
DL 53 o E T 22 A 3K Share-based payments
HATE S Executive - 4296
ML ATE S Independent Non-executive - 1,125
4,791 8,652

A SEMNT = (2F 2
b —&) EREZ A EME WM
o

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen
(2012: eleven) Directors were as follows:

Fik BAEA WRAR
Jbsin GE-LS G PAF ¢
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other benefits Share-based
Fees benefits scheme payments Total
Vi aon Vi aon Vi aon Vi aon Vi aon
HES000 HES'000 HES000 HES000 HES'000
Bk % Mr. TAN Harry Chua 200 - - - 200
B (i~ Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank (note 1) 200 - - - 200
BRE g Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 200 - - - 200
TAN Michael Gonzales /£~ Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales
(W=) (note 2) 4 - - - 4
R Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming 200 360 - - 560
KEIEES Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 10 - - - 10
JERlE A Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 360 - - - 360
SY Robin i+ Dr. SY Robin k3l - - - 3
HOWEE Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 360 - - - 360
itk M. WONG Sai Tat 1 133 58 - 1631
ERERL Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 360 - - - 360
GO Patrick Lim /£ (#/7£=  Mr. GO Patrick Lim (note 3) 160 - - - 160
BRI (i) Mr. CHUA Domingo (iofe 4) 160 - - - 160

3040 1,693

4791
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11. EFREEMNE &) 11.

(W) g W& (A7)

BRI S Mr. CHUA Domingo

PRk A Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
Bk R S Mr. TAN Harry Chua
iR 2 g M. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
i Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming
FIENEEA Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
HERIE A Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
SY Robin &+ Dr. SY Robin

a2 Pt Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
Foftt i et Mr. WONG Sai Tat
EfEHL Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Wt

— - BRI L IR A A AT B
VA 98 55 22 3 P 49 968 AT 47 BUA
AT A RS 1)

.~ TAN Michael Gonzales /¢ 4= & — % —
SEMA—HEREBRPITES -

|1l

GO Patrick Lim 56 2E it =% — = 4F
ANBMRE BB L EAITES

M ERWEAR -E—=4FPH—H
BEERATHH -

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Fek  BARA  UKRA
EARA A B2
Contributions

Salaries  to retirement

and other benefits Share-based

Fees benefits scheme payments

BETT  BETT BEFT EFTI
HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

160 - - 675 835
140 - - 619 759
140 - - 563 703
160 - - 563 723
140 360 - 563 1,063
160 - - 563 723
160 - - 375 535
140 - - 375 515
160 - - 375 535
160 1,138 53 375 1,726
160 - - 375 535
1,680 1,498 53 5421 8,052
Notes:
1. Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank is also the Chief Executive Officer of

the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive Officer.

2. Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales was appointed as an Executive
Director on 1 April 2013.

3. Mr. GO Patrick Lim was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director on 8 February 2013.

4. Mr. CHUA Domingo resigned as an Executive Director on 1 April
2013.
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11. EFREEMNE &)

(2) 18 B4

A REHFMA LA L EF
(ZF— 2 F  Wa#ESE)  H
A FEIE N Bt EESS 1 () 18
o P& (ZF— 4 =

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one Director
(2012: two Directors), details of whose emoluments
are set out in note 11(a) above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2012: three) individuals are as follows:

H)NLZBE R
—R =4 —R -4
2013 2012
T 7B M or
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
4 S L A A A Salaries and other benefits 2,968 2,454
B R A T Retirement benefits scheme
3K contributions 143 110
DA 2o BTl 2 A5k Share-based payments - 247
3,111 2,811
B2 BN 1 2 357 B W AR B A Each individual’s emoluments are less than HK$1,000,000

2 ik 51,000,000 TG

12. BLH

for both years.

12. TAXATION

SR-E4
2013
W T

HK$°000

TR — TR
2012

W T
HKS$°000
(RH7)
(restated)

Tl JE S A4 - The tax charge comprises:
T Iy e R iy 45 Current tax in the PRC
(BRI (other than Hong Kong)
A AE B Current year 11,876 10,257
AR AR B R A Overprovision in prior years (238) (1,287)
11,638 8,970
o B 3t 4 (B PRC LAT 9,614 1,254
R AE B TE (Mt 5525 ) Deferred taxation (note 25) 23,891 15,071
45,143 25,295
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PR A% S T 7S T A J5E A MG IR S B Y
A BOR &5 G 85 BR TE A 3 2 A o B
3 BLHEA -

R 5 v ] A 26 BT 15 B 12k (T B P 19 B
W) BAZERT IS B B R ) A4
B AR B A F 2 BRI EE AR
—H—H®A25% o

AN T A A WS I 0 B i 4 BE S T Y
e /N B O R i B i /N €
o E LB A Al A~ LA K
F B A 19 10% ZE 25% °

- b 3 (8 0 45 M 4 A B B BB kR
Lo 15051 P SR AR RE AR A R o b
E B C & R B LAY AR 58 T
FE AT 198 B SR A 4 A

0 S 3 T B T SR B R B RE A5 25 TH
A o

A BIEIREE A ZFENFE—
A —H & > 55 Ik B A 2 By e e
Ttk FI| I 28 5038 5% 2 10% 1 T8 Fn B - it
SRR > b s A EE 2R B R 2 4
B A %5 A W5 R TH 1A 5 2 208 AE B I 4y
1,790,000 7T ( =& — T4 HEHE
1,269,000 7T ) ©

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable
profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong
and the BVI are subject to withholding tax ranging from 10%
to 25% on their taxable rental income, management fee income

and interest income in the PRC.

The provision for LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive
rates of the appreciation value, with certain allowable
deductions.

Details of the deferred tax liabilities are set out in note 25.

The EIT Law also requires withholding tax upon distribution of
profits earned by the PRC entities since 1 January 2008 at 5%
to 10%. At the end of the reporting period, deferred taxation of
HKS$1,790,000 (2012: HK$1,269,000) has been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of the temporary

differences attributable to such profits.
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12. B #) 12. TAXATION (Continued)
I A B A B TE S M AT B A A 1 g M E The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
Al 4 1A i 4 3% 2 R BL FiT Ve AR AN T taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

#it B A A ik
Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Total
Sl S
013 2013 2013
BT BEFL EBTL BET WL
HES'000 HKS 000 HES'000 HEKS$'000 HKS$ 000
(&)
(restated) (restated)
BRBLHT (B 8) A (Loss) profit before taxation (049) (6,084) 171,704 117,663 170,755 111579
BABE Application tax rate 165% 165% 25% 25%

BAM B ERBE Tax at the domestic income tax rate

ARZHA (157) (1,004) 4292 29416 42,769 8412
FHEBUAR R A B Tax effect of expenses not deductible

T2 HBY for tax purpose 184 1492 512 1574 5306 3,066
ATEBUERATAB  Taxeffect of income not taxable

RAZRERE for tax purpose (2,501) (2553) (2.260) (543) (4761) (3,096)
FHBERHEER Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

V&b 2474 2,065 - - 2474 2,065
S FE A A B Tax effect of share of loss of a jointly

Vaihis % controlled entity - - 1,820 1,682 1820 1,682
BRI Overprovision in prior years - = (238) (1,287) (238) (1,287)
BT KRN Utilisation of deductible temporary

A1 e 2 difference previously ot recognised - - (2,781) - (2,781) -
JERTTER B 2 KB % Effect of different tax rate for subsidiaries

HMBAAZE subject to withholding tax - - (16,838) (11459) (16,838) (11459)

WA E R EF 2 Deforred tax liabilities resulting from
FRBLATE £ 2B withholding tax on undistributed

BEAE profits of a subsidiary - = 484 550 484 550
THEERZBE Effect of LAT - - 19467 7,705 19,467 7,705
it Others - - (2,559) (2343) (2,559) (2.343)

AEERIE S H Tax charge for the year - - 45,143 25295 45,143 25,95
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13. BA 13. DIVIDENDS
2013 2012
BT W T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
FH#EE T — 4 Final dividend paid in respect
ANA=THIEEED RS of year ended 30 June 2012 of
AR e B s s 2 Al 2 Hong Kong cents
(T ——4F - WAl (2011: 2 Hong Kong cents) per share 4,382 4382
FREE —F— =4 Interim dividend paid in respect
ANH=Z1HIEFEED RS of year ended 30 June 2013 of
R 8 S A T 2.5 2.5 Hong Kong cents
(2R — 4 - w2l (2012: 2 Hong Kong cents) per share 5,485 4,382
9,867 8,764
HREOERBE _F—=F~"A=+ The final dividend in respect of 2.5 Hong Kong cents per share
H ok 47 B oK B v 2.5l > & totalling HK$5,485,000 for the year ended 30 June 2013 has
FE % W 5,485,000 0 > M ZE 1 IR IR been proposed by the Directors of the Company and is subject

AR R g B o to approval by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.
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14.

5 I 5 A

AN T HEAT N T A B B R T 4

MG AT R R

BA

A R B e A 2
il 30 22 ] B 1 A
(A~ m A N
A JEE TR0 A 3 ) )

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

TR =4
2013
BT

HKS$’000

Earnings

Earnings for the purposes of basic
and diluted earnings per share
(profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company) 123,166

E -4
2012
W T
HKS$°000
(& 51)
(restated)

85,003

Jbe £y ¥ H

At A A
8 B HE T 24 %

o FS AR R T
e 2 %

A= e 3L u b
88 B HE T34 %

Number of shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 219,194,914

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares on share options 8,356,075

219,103,681

1,543,391

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of
diluted earnings per share 227,550,989

220,647,072
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15. W3 ~ BEA ot i

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Rt MA%E
)3 55 HiW BRI ik
Leasehold (0)iil3
land and Motor equipment
building vehicles and others Total
BT T EWT T EWT T EWT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JA COST
REF——%EH—H  Atlhly2011 1,705 5,545 4,688 11,938
S Exchange realignment 34 110 83 227
wE Additions - - 61 61
Rk Disposals - - (87) (87)
MZFE—=ZHFAAZTH  At30June 2012 1,739 5,655 4,745 12,139
S Exchange realignment 41 131 95 267
wE Additions - - 117 117
HE /8 Disposals/written off = = (1,657) (1,657)
REZ—-ZEANAZ1TH  At30 June 2013 1,780 5,786 3,300 10,866
Vit DEPRECIATION
RoZ——HELH—H  Atlluly2011 317 4974 4,200 9,491
S Exchange realignment 6 99 73 178
AR e Provided for the year 83 155 88 326
i B R Eliminated on disposals = = (78) (78)
MEF—ZHFAA=TH  At30June 2012 406 5,028 4283 9,917
4 A Exchange realignment 11 87 98 196
ARAE Ve Provided for the year 83 23 87 193
T B BB Eliminated on disposals/written off - - (1,489) (1,489)
REZ—-ZEANAZ1TH  At30 June 2013 500 5,338 2,979 8,817
I i £ CARRYING AMOUNTS
REZR-ZHEXNZTH At30 June 2013 1,280 448 31 2,049
MEZF—=Z4ANH=1TH  At30 June 2012 1,333 427 462 2,222

A S5 A B o e T 2 AR T (BB AR
(08 QU N AV EE N e SRR Y/
H R A B BKCTE R BE R b e M T RS
Z W EAT AT B BT > BCRTH A B 0
RAEEMRE -

16 2% 8 2 KAl Gt R B (AR - Ly
3~ AR SR TE T S AR R

FH 1 b e M5 AT M S 204F

(AT S 35 1y YE)
BT 15% 2 20%
e 2 F A S H A 10% % 33.3%

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land and building
comprises property situated in PRC and held under medium-
term of lease. As the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
classified as finance lease.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated at the following rates per annum after taking into
account of their estimated residual value:

Over shorter of lease term
and 20 years

15% to 20%

10% to 33.3%

Leasehold land and building

Motor vehicles
Office equipment and others
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16. BEWE

BT T
HKS$'000

AT
Ro%——EtA—H
S

AT

RoZE——FAA=+H
50 8
AT

BRoZ—-=Z4FANA=1H

NoE—=Z=FER -F—-FANA=1+
H> REBEBREYEZATHETTRE
B A S5 (B A A B 2 M ST S B G 2
At (B B A &) (B — KT J0AHE ik (L % &
ERMARAT) > R H BT ZfAE
B HEA A G KR A &R
B T EZ 85 - ET S
BT 5 b R TR b [ AL A 2 5 G 1B
PR RE U B Rk g B R
B ) 3 B R VB 1 & AL U A (I
F) o FEAG BB TE B i A A 2 ik
i 70 %8 HE 587,395,000 70 (& — T4E ¢
W 1559,156,0000C) EIEAELE N - T A
& 2E X A R BN B s R ALY

A AL BT A LA SE A B B A0 B A T
B 4 W i SR A H 2 BEE Y R
8 8 45 B 33 LA A~ (E 7w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE

At 1 July 2011 1,645,704
Exchange realignment 33,076
Increase in fair value 59,156
At 30 June 2012 1,737,936
Exchange realignment 42,097
Increase in fair value 87,395
At 30 June 2013 1,867,428

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 30 June
2013 and 2012 has been arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out on that date by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group with appropriate
qualification and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same location and conditions or where
appropriate by considering the capitalised income to be derived
from the existing tenancies and the reversionary potential of the
properties. The revaluation gave rise to a net gain arising from
increase in fair value of HK$87,395,000 (2012: HK$59,156,000)
which has been credited to profit or loss. All the investment
properties are situated in the PRC under medium-term lease.

The investment properties of the Group held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model for both years.
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17. W # 0 2 a) BEs 3t P 17. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

2l Rk

BUE WA > IR LT (B RE)
WA B A% s 18 I Ak 445 ) 20

Fe [ 2 1 & 7 R K
entity

R A

A 4 A = L AR B gy R P R 2
A S RO W (T I 1) fr e 45 w42
s R PRI A E R = R LA R
A7 T [ AR G R B (TR E R
&) Bt = FENELA =4 A A B R R
P h e (T =R B NAERY ) -

SRR

RIE =TT/ ER R > H P ash (F) R—Juus
T H o HORT L 2 IR R (3L A 4R R
Il A 1 2280%) ([ B R Whal |) % & 1A %0
(Z) B v B SRy i R T X HE v 48 48 5T 4 =) 4 4%
AR SO (A 4 7 111 3 i R B %80% ) (4L
BT OCME )) o R S AR TR SO R A R
K () Y1 2 5 & A #ERR 25 A R 121,000,000
gt HhALEE R P G EBES I HE AR
10,290,000 7C Jz A [ #510,710,000 7C - 1fif A< 48 [#] K
T5 A G 1 43 Bl R A DI 3 2 B HE HE 25 49% 12 51% o

HERL > KEMANF 2 PEIEEREMN > —F
T ARFR YA () 7 42 [ A HE AR 9% I SR 17 A7 (8
HEER 5 () BEAEMBE & EBERAI
e 7 I HERE 22 20 Bl 55 49% B 51% (58 7 A 35 =) i
o IE 2 Ak o 40 4% B AR SO 5 5% 5 A A T R SR o
HAE ) o M A B A RE TR A B R A
LA SO 2 e 5 K (P9) A 5B [ B 4 R A
£ 49% % 80% -+ 1 42 {1k 3% i & A A R 32,550,000
T 2 R 5 A 42 T 1) 1) HE A () B o

AR E R R E IR IR G R A
SEE IR — SN E+ A = AR
D R R R ) — R A 2 ([ R
W) S FF MR O R = FF
EILA M EEST > M #RZERGCR —F B4
HA = FOBt A B AR R R R R (T =
BRIIERR) -

Cost of investment, unlisted (note)
Share of post-acquisition loss and
reserves

Less: Allowance for interest receivable

ENTITY/AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY

Amount due from a jointly controlled

CONTROLLED ENTITY
=k
2013
BT
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
117,313 85,845
(31,699) (24,873)
85,614 60,972
244,297 253,763
(7,370) (7,370)
236,927 246,393

Note:

The Group in 2007 had lodged a petition for international arbitration in respect
of the dispute with Chinese joint venture partner as to the percentages of equity
interest held in Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”). The
arbitral proceedings were heard during 2007 and an arbitral award was made by
China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (“CIETAC”)
on 30 July 2008 in relation thereto (the “Award 2008”).

Award 2008

Pursuant to the Award 2008, amongst others, (a) the shareholders’ agreement
dated 20 December 1996, in which the Group’s shareholding in Zhen Wah
increased to 80%, (“Shareholders’ Agreement”) is legally valid and effective; (b)
the revised constitutional documents, in which the Group’s shareholding in Zhen
Wabh increased to 80%, (“Constitutional Documents”) were not yet effective as
such constitutional documents had not yet been duly approved by the relevant PRC
government authorities; and (c) the registered capital of Zhen Wah was confirmed
to be RMB21,000,000, of which RMB10,290,000 and RMB10,710,000 were
contributed by the Group and the Chinese joint venture partner, respectively, and
that the equity interests of Zhen Wah were held by the Group and the Chinese joint
venture partner as to 49% and 51%, respectively.

In the opinion of the Directors, as advised by the Company’s PRC legal advisers, as
a result of the Award 2008, (a) the Group is entitled to enforce its rights under the
Shareholders” Agreement; (b) although the equity interests in Zhen Wah as held by
the Group and the Chinese joint venture partner were 49% and 51%, respectively,
in view of the fact that the Constitutional Documents were not yet effective since
such Constitutional Documents had not yet been duly approved by the relevant
PRC government authorities, the Group had the right to seek for the approval of
the relevant PRC government authorities in connection with the Constitutional
Documents; and (c) the additional capital contribution of RMB32,550,000 by the
Group for the increase in its shareholding from 49% to 80% would be considered as
advances to Zhen Wah by the Group.

The Group in 2009 had lodged another petition for international arbitration in
respect of the Chinese joint venture partner’s continuance to fulfill the obligations
under a Shareholders’ Agreement entered into with the Group on 20 December
1996, in relation to Zhen Wah (the “2009 Arbitral Proceedings”). The 2009
Arbitral Proceedings were heard on 4 September 2009 and the arbitral award in
2009 (the “Award 2009”) has been made by CIETAC on 27 May 2010.
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WGt - ()

ZRBAERR

W = FTJUAER R Hh i (1) 4 4 H &
SR R Y A AR AT EL A B B 1 STAE
B A 4 10 A S T R I S Y R HE 2R 2
80% » CLHMPHZ B @M 5 (2) A% RS A
I 22 5 SR fh e € K 0 B A 19 R AR A Bk
Mo A A B B G OR o TR R B w SO
Je () 77 & B % P4 A& 1 T SR T 7 A i SR
TR B S e

AT T = T JUAF PR AR > A5 T B B
LAt R R R

B A5G BRI NG %

TE T AR Z AT > I AR B A 4 ]
2 R HE o 45 B 31 #E B 42 [ N 38 58 B I A B
1% > Yl e B IR TE B A 4R [ 45 A P IR TEL S OF -
BMEEZZNENA=ZTHIEEER > ZK
FE N AEFREER - B BT — ) R ]
it A5 B O TG A o AR AR g I A I S FRE E 2
49% 2 M £ 35 > YIHE O g 2y R R A ED > i
YIE Y G A KD W EBR A A AR - AL
1 T Y1l 2 S SE R & R > e SR FENFEL
H = H & A 2 A8 58 83 [ 22 1) 28 7 RGEK o AR
B E FFAl B 32 R i 1= AT BB M SRR R F L
Tl R A T A A A TR ORI B 1 (s 1R i
7,370,000 7T ©

TR JUAE R TR AT B A S AR SR B e
RO BL A 1 EHT R IR A Bk A i A A
80% MoK - CHE MR Z B g S HF -

7% 45 T 1 A7 11 2 BN HE 2 49% 1% HE iR 5 E N 2
Fe AE AL e W A IR o fly i A 2 R HE R R
ERTIBRIE T s BB HN—HFAE > fEE
SE-ZFEARNAZT R 3% SN & L
19,607,000 7€ ( — ZF — 4 ¢ 8,196,000 7T ) Jff
KT UMERR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Award 2009

Pursuant to the Award 2009, amongst others, (a) the petition made by the Group
for the Chinese joint venture partner to continue to fulfill its obligations under the
Shareholders” Agreement which stipulated, amongst others, the increase of equity
interests of the Group in Zhen Wah to 80% has been rejected by CIETAC; (b) the
petition made by the Group for the distribution of profit arising from rental income
generated from the Tung Kok Tau Land before re-development in accordance with
the provisions of the Shareholders’ Agreement has been supported by CIETAC;
and (c) the petition made by the Chinese joint venture partner for termination of
the Shareholders” Agreement has been supported by CIETAC.

There were no other arbitral awards received by the Group subsequent to the grant
of Award 2009.

Impact to the consolidated financial statements

Prior to the Award 2008, Zhen Wah was accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Group. Its financial statements were consolidated line by line into the Group’s
consolidated financial statements after eliminating the intra-group transactions
and balances with Zhen Wah. During the year ended 30 June 2009, as a result
of the Award 2008, the management considered that no unilateral control could
be imposed by either party. The assets and liabilities of Zhen Wah were de-
consolidated and the Group’s share of net assets and results in Zhen Wah had
been accounted for as a jointly controlled entity under the equity method based
on the Group’s 49% equity interest in Zhen Wah. The advances to Zhen Wah
by the Group had not been eliminated but classified as the Group’s amount due
from a jointly controlled entity since 30 July 2008. The Group had assessed
the recoverability of the amount due from Zhen Wah and had recognised an
impairment loss of HK$7,370,000 in respect of the irrecoverable interest of the
advance in 2009.

The Award 2009 supported the distribution of profit arising from rental income
generated from the Tung Kok Tau Land before re-development entitled by
the Group should be 80% as stipulated in the provisions of the Shareholders’
Agreement.

The distribution of profit arising from rental income was accounted for under
the equity method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in Zhen Wah. The
additional share of 31% up to 30 June 2013 which has not been recognised by the
Group amounted to HK$9,607,000 (2012: HK$8,196,000), as the Directors of the
Company consider the result of the arbitration is subject to the agreement of the
Chinese joint venture partner.
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17.

3 ) P b 2 A RE 2R3 ) s )
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17. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY/AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

Particulars of the jointly controlled entity as at 30 June 2013 and
30 June 2012 are as follows:

STk 3 P % b ik ABMAEA S EEREH

Name of jointly controlled entity

TN YN 2 5 8 A 2 A PR A )
Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour
Enterprises Ltd.

bl 3 A 4 i A B A AR B AR E A
"l o Sl AN A A AN B A
T A6 TR 42 Al 2% m] AT (1 50% 8 5
BEEAHE A 2 ARG 3L R 2 ) 2 W
fY 5 L e -

DEERLEFHRD —F —ME—AE
o BB DI 2E ) AL 48 1T BR K JE W - A
4 [ 8 B OE B R 7 B B PR R B
i w o DA A2 W — 1 JiE T B AR
A AT T R o R o B B IE A K
ORI B A RORUR % R AN R A AT B
AN TR HE R AN AT AT 07 560 DLEUAS R AR AR
LAY ENREMNE - H BN TR
AL A E AN BROTS K8 75 Y SE 3 > R SR M
— B A R A AT AT T .

ANEAREE AP E— 0 E > A
NEEFOTMER F—=ZFANA =
T B L[] A R RE 4 B A R A
) R K A EE 43 R By s 985,614,000 76 K
5 236,927,000 70 ) B WL 11 RE F7 o AR
A O3 B I B T A Y B S R TE
S #f B H 4 EI 1 o8 Al ] e

Place of The Group’s

establishment equity interest  Principal activities

Sl 49% B EEVE OB AR P SRR

PRC 49%  Temporary port operations/
property development

The above jointly controlled entity is sino-foreign equity joint
venture company and indirectly held by the Company. The
Group is able to exercise 50% voting power in the jointly
controlled entity, which is determined by the proportion of the
Group’s representatives in the Board of Directors of the jointly
controlled entity.

The operation period of Zhen Wah will be expired in January
2014. In view of the expiry of operation period of Zhen Wah, the
management of the Group has been negotiating and discussing
with the Chinese joint venture partner to compromise a viable
option to operate Zhen Wah upon expiry. In this respect, the
management has been actively seeking for legal advice and
thoroughly considering and assessing about various expedient
and viable options to procure the best interests of the Group in
Zhen Wah in the future. The options under consideration include
but not limited to extension of operation period, re-negotiation
of a new joint venture and any other viable options.

Regardless of which options the Group would be finally
concluded, the Directors of the Company have assessed the
recoverability of interest in a jointly controlled entity and
amount due from a jointly controlled entity amounting to
HK$85,614,000 and HK$236,927,000, respectively as at 30
June 2013. The Directors of the Company have reviewed the
latest financial positions of Zhen Wah and concluded that the
amounts will be fully recoverable.
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17. W # 0 2 a) BEs 3t P
2w Rk (45)

LTy LEY CEACET
I R0 R B E A F

17.

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY/AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

A summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
jointly controlled entity which is accounted for using the equity

method is set out below:

e St -4

2013 2012

W T W T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

B E E () Non-current assets (note) 255,925 254,528

B EE Current assets 62,194 55,839
i B AR Current liabilities (15,549) (14,636)
JE W B B i Non-current liabilities (236,927) (246,197)

65,043 49,534

B A R HE RRL Y U A Income recognised in profit or loss 11,040 11,350

AR A5 R HE R Y S Expenses recognised in profit or loss 25,897 25,074

Wt WA R TR R T AL P R
SRR A — M st 2 e HE 2 A A
BRSO - YIS A
HAE K R S A R 2 ST AE A AT
oy [ B TR E o IE Bl AT B BOR A 1 P

I [R] 2 il A W R K 4 M KA % ZE R A
WM ARET+ MABMEE - %
RN 6% ( % — 4 : 6%) &
BEF B e AR S - T — =
FRAZH s REWE o W AE R B
A Wi F1) B, 57,370,000 T (- —
A 7,370,000 0) o

18. HEWE

A SE ) 5 B 26 5 60 B DA RO
BERA - RERMAK > EWEER
WEBEIT T2 AERE > mE
B JE b w4 B s 116,811,000 78 (&
— AE 25,470,000 7T ) TE W A 2
WA AR+ WA -

18.

Note: The assets include property held for development which represent prepaid

lease payments of land use rights and direct reclamation costs for a piece
of land situated at Tung Kok Tau in Shenzhen, the PRC with the land
use right. Zhen Wah has paid all land premium and is in the process of
negotiating with relevant government authorities for redevelopment due
to the re-zoning and re-planning of the city on which the properties are
located.

The amount due from a jointly controlled entity is unsecured
and to be repayable after the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period. The amount is carried at amortised cost at
an effective interest rate of 6% (2012: 6%) per annum. As at 30
June 2013, the amount was partially impaired in respect of the
interest receivable of HK$7,370,000 (2012: HK$7,370,000).

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The properties held for sale of the Group are situated in the
PRC and held under medium-term lease. At the end of the
reporting period, the properties are all available for sale in the
ordinary course of business, and the management estimates that
HKS$16,811,000 (2012: HK$25,470,000) are expected to be
realised more than twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.
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19. £k e Wik 5 19. LOAN RECEIVABLES
R =4 TR TR
2013 2012
BT T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
A T A B K Loan receivables 1,914 2211
W R R Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (1,914) (2,211)
A RE Wi B R R R R B o A The loan receivables were unsecured and interest-free. The
FE—FEREFE-ZFREH ZE amounts were all past due at the reporting dates of both 2012
SHEEE AWM - and 2013.
S W 48 5 5 ) Movement in allowance for doubtful debts
R =4 TR TR
2013 2012
BT Vo T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
R AER) At the beginning of the year 2,211 2,284
oRIEN, ik 4C] Impairment loss reversed (343) (119)
b 4 5 Exchange realignment 46 46
A4 At the end of the year 1,914 2,211
20. il 4x ik % 20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
B 5 Be I il HE Wit B 3k Trade and other receivables
R =4 TR TR
2013 2012
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
2 5 e WU JH Trade receivables 10,304 19,479
H Al 8 ol R JH Other receivables 5,837 7,348
16,141 26,827
W R AR Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (3,787) (14,778)

12,354 12,049
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20.

b £ & ()
S5 B 3 Al WE WOk =k (4 )

W oE-ZFENA=ZTH HAb K
W A B 30 RN B AT 1) SR AT fH
FRIE T FR A 4R T 4 A K (LLET B AR A
F6.15% ( K — T 4F 0 5.85%) F 4
BRAS) 2 M iR s 230,000 T (&
— A 563,000 00) o BB EE AR 19
TA B 78 1 B AN AREE YL
ERHERZ TFHEEMNA0H (ZF
— A 1 30H) o REMEF Z S REIL
WK K & 5 2 IR 5 e A i R 0
B R A o

RERMIKR - DLBESE H A s e 2
5 5 T e MU R (1 R R M) 2 R
BTN

0H £60H A

AL A B B & P A AR R
Tabfl > WM ABEEFEHEE R
M ERFEEHE - FF o UG EE
BN E MR o HP &5 IR RZ
95% (& — T 4E : 96%) A FF 38 1 5V I
B BA RIF&RRE Ak -

7 45 [ & S I A IR BB A R T (L v
366,000 JC ( — & — T 4FE ¢ ¥k #300,000
J6) ARG R E RS H B A
W T A 4R AR VR UK (E 4R
e MR EHEERARA ERYE > &
B ER 5 v A T Al ] o AR A
S AR FE A B %S A R AT TSR o
S50 R WA MR T 4 A R % 2 e 132 H
(ZF— 4 :30H) -

0-60 days

20.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

At 30 June 2013, the balance of other receivables include
receivables from home buyers who defaulted on repayment
to banks, representing the loans taken over by the Group, of
HK$230,000 (2012: HK$63,000) are measured at amortised cost
at an effective interest rate of 6.15% (2012: 5.85%) per annum.
For property sales, other than home loans disclosed in note 19,
the Group allows an average credit period of 30 days (2012: 30
days) to the buyers. Rentals receivable from tenants and service
income receivables from customers are payable on presentation

of invoices.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debt presented based on invoice date at
the end of the reporting period.

—R—-=4 — B4R

2013 2012
BT
HKS$000

#WT T
HK$°000

6,813 7,804

Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out
assessment on the creditability of the new customer and assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly. 95% (2012: 96%) of the trade receivables are neither
past due nor impaired and have good settlement repayment
history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors
with a carrying amount of HK$366,000 (2012: HK$300,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. There has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the management
considers that the amounts are still recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The average overdue
age of these receivables is 32 days (2012: 30 days) overdue.



DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR BA IR TE B 5 )

WEZE—=FANA=THILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

20. HAb 4 mhE i ) 20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
S5 B A W W W k(A Trade and other receivables (Continued)
23 39 19 A A i 0 e 2 SR B3 40 B Aging of past due but not impaired trade receivables
TR =4 TR T4
2013 2012
BT W T
HKS$°000 HK$°000
iy Overdue:
0HZ30H N 0-30 days 340 300
31HZE60H A 31-60 days 26 -
MR Total 366 300
R 75 tr 5 ) Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
e St T4
2013 2012
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
) At the beginning of the year 14,778 15,257
T (A s 48 438 [ Impairment loss reversed (290) (775)
(5 18 HE 52 Impairment loss recognised - 1,240
bk gk Exchange realignment 166 248
0 25 A [ R Tl Amounts written-off as uncollectible (10,867) (1,192)
R AE At the end of the year 3,787 14,778
TE T E G R A R AR I AR In determining the recoverability of a trade debtor, the Group
EHEEE A ERES THE considers any change in the credit quality of the trade debtor
AOH ZE AR B WG RE R AL & from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting
B o R Sy T AR AR B LA AN date. The Directors believe that there is no further credit
TERE M B vEfH - provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts.
RIEBHOEE LCHEBEERENE S The allowance for doubtful debts of HK$3,787,000 (2012:
JRE iz B 2K A L 45 ik 3L v 153,787,000 I HK$14,778,000) are individually impaired trade receivables
(& — T4F  #14,778,000 ) © 7% which are in severe financial difficulties with long outstanding
JRE SRR A B BB IR I HL R R A balances overdue. The Group does not hold any collateral over
W e AEEN RFTA HZFEL R these balances.

AT AR o
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20.

21.

220l

Al 4 7 RE (a0
I IR JBe ke K

7% ok VA ISR - e R R I
fH2 -

BT RO R B &

WITHE B I SEEAERRH 2B
& KB BRAE = {8 A sk LA i oS R
W RAT AR K o T3 AR 5y AR
1.82% (=& —T4F 1 1.71%)

B0 55 Be 3¢ fib M A5 Mie K

MR_E—=ZFEANHA=1+H "5 kK
il B £5) B 3K &5 6% A2 45 Hs 151,217,000 oG
(=& — 4 @ ¥611,00000) 2 B 5
MEAT R K o i EEIHR > DIEEE H I
1 5L E T 2 50 & 5 AT AR R 2 R i A
Mranr :

0H %E60H A
60 H DA I

HoAth B AT R B E B AL R 4 R 4
#626,549,000 7C ( . & — A K
25,135,000 oG ) K T8 i # %5,632,000 76
(=& —4F ¥ %5,060,0007C) ©

o B A % 4

%A U AE B IR T + |
J R e 58 2 WL i o

0-60 days
Over 60 days

20.

21.

22.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
deposits with maturity of three months or less held with banks
were not restricted in use. The average effective interest rate is
1.82% (2012: 1.71%) per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

At 30 June 2013, the balance of trade and other payables
included trade payables of HK$1,217,000 (2012: HK$611,000).
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

- St R — AR
2013 2012

BT HWET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

650 123

567 488

1,217 611

The other payables mainly include rental deposits of
HK$26,549,000 (2012: HK$25,135,000) and receipt in advance
of HK$5,632,000 (2012: HK$5,060,000).

PRE-SALE DEPOSITS RECEIVED

The amount is expected to be recognised as revenue within the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
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23. @47 HEK 23. BANK LOANS
e Sy TR T4
2013 2012
BT T T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
A KA SRAT SR Secured bank loans 205,718 230,192
JHE £ % R T (- Carrying amount repayable:
— AR Within one year 205,718 24,474
— AR H AN B T A More than one year, but not exceeding
two years - 205,718
205,718 230,192
W BIAE B B T ZE R Less: Amounts due within one year
— 4 N R ROA shown under current liabilities (205,718) (24,474)
B AE IF I B & Ak IE Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities - 205,718
S|ATERUAMR P B LR EYE The bank loans are secured by the investment properties situated
TEHEHT - 07 DA R 45 45 - in Shanghai, the PRC and are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.
R AR ERE N E18%Z 7 The loans carried interest at variable rate of 1.8% over HIBOR
AR (ZF— 4 FEFEHEME (2012: 0.61% to 1.8% over HIBOR) per annun.

0.61% £ 1.8%) 7 & -

24. JBEAR 24. SHARE CAPITAL

Jbe £y ¥ H B

Number of

shares Amount
T r
HKS$°000

B3 Bk 5 1.00 7T 2 3 48 B £ Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each

KIE ¢ Authorised:
W oFE——FLHA—H - At 1 July 2011, 30 June 2012 and
R -CHFEAAZTHRK 30 June 2013
ZEF-=FANA=1TH 300,000,000 300,000
AT R Issued and fully paid:
W_F——FLtH—-HK At 1 July 2011 and 30 June 2012
“E-_HEARNA=TH 219,103,681 219,104
AT 18 58 I HE T A e 13 Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options 300,000 300

W_F—=4EANA=1H At 30 June 2013 219,403,681 219,404
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24.

S

AR (41

A 4E BE R > 300,000 43 52 B A B % 47 i
{E R U W13 0 AT > DARRHE AR A
A Z A o BT A AR B R B AT 2 8 i
3 B B B B0 B 45 T TR A TR A
HERG o

3B SiE B8 2 £ 0

PATT o A 4F T8 B i A ik o 100 ] A 4
D < F AR AE B E B A B A E)

BoF— LA R

At 1 July 2011

24.

25k

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

During the year, 300,000 share options were exercised at an
exercise price of HK$1.13 per share to subscribe for shares in
the Company. All the new shares issued during the year rank
pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting
periods are as follows:

A

& 43 il i A
Undistributed
earnings of
PRC entities
T T
HKS$°000

/3L E S

k]

Investment
Total
T T
HK3$°000
(5 &E)
(restated)

properties
T T
HKS$°000
(&= )
(restated)

(#151) (originally stated) 705 104,944 105,649
AW G FH R 1298 Adoption of amendments to

(ERTAS) (M 7# %521H) HKAS 12 (note 2) = 106,377 106,377
WoFE——FELH—H  AtllJuly2011

(&&&E7) (restated) 705 211,321 212,026
R E N NE IS Charge to profit or loss 550 14,521 15,071
5, 4 o Exchange realignment 14 4,244 4,258
W T A At 30 June 2012

NHAH=+H 1,269 230,086 231,355
T 15 55 4 411 BR Charge to profit or loss 484 23,407 23,891
Do Exchange realignment 37 5,758 5,795
B —-Z4EAA=Z1TH At30June 2013 1,790 259,251 261,041

MoE—ZFH=Z1H > AELHT
PR I 815 o 2l s A 1 A (55 B TE S 4R
75 s M 87,873,000 G ( —FE — AF
#572,881,0007C) © [H K fit e € oK 2K %k Al
Ui WK A R R AL B TH o s B
TH Jis 15 nT 20 B2 00 45 o

At 30 June 2013, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$87,873,000 (2012: HK$72,881,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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W oE—ZFNNH=Z1H > REHT
0131 RF 2= A A s 165,215,000 G (-
T A 574,762,000 0C) o H A AT
By 0% T R 25 A 2 n] R RE R B
Il A BE B E A7 7E > TICME S AR 4E Bl JH &
FEE Ht #Z T A1 25 A B RE R o

ANAEIR _FEE-F+_H_+—H
PR 40 5% B BE st 0 (T 2001 4E 5 #0 1) -
W o ——E A+ T H LA AN F R
AR b — T P R R
WA E PR AR SR R RE ST B (M2011
AEFEE D) EEEER F —F T
AN H JE IR R R A
+ = A Ju H & 1£2001 4F 51 #] o £ 44
2001 4 51 & K2011 4 51 | & B £ & &
H - B LA EESEERAIER -

At 30 June 2013, the Group has deductible temporary difference
of HK$65,215,000 (2012: HK$74,762,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised.

The Company previously adopted a share option scheme on 21
December 2001 (the “2001 Scheme”). On 9 December 2011,
an ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company approving the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”) which will
expire on 8 December 2021 and the simultaneous termination of
the 2001 Scheme with effect from 9 December 2011. Both the
2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme were adopted for the purpose
of providing incentives to Directors, employees and eligible
participants.
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42001 4F 5t 8 K 2011 4E 51 8] > AR
I = e W N/ D /A
$\EI&A§%,A%~?E%ﬂ
HAARERGHEES) BT R
WA N & By (1 JBedy 1) 2 B EHE (58
BEHE |) o B B 10 w8 B AE 4 A D A LU
T= %zfm%@hw%&%wrm
BEMER H (A& 2R ) 72832 BT H )t
i%ﬁﬂuzuﬂﬂ 5 (i) B i B R T
AH B BRI AE H A A AR 2 2E H AR B RS
BT B 26 B g 2 PTG Bk
Py T AE o AR B R8T 8 n] 4% ol
AT RE B AT R I RE ey 8 H i 2
AN A LA B R R ST B R 2
B 54T B A3 10% o R $82011 4F 5 # >
7% 10%F8 25 115 21,910,368 B 3 TG 4l 78 28
A A EIRH B AT BB 10% o
iz G EHEH - B TG ERK
2 B AT A+ W A A AT R A A
A AR S BN AR T OH B B AT AR
1% > At 3% 4t ¥ K ] 47 fifi 48 4% 7 58 ik
ME o AJ AT B2 T 58 B HE U] (M) 5 AR N )
ERGWEMYIR EAERBART
Z HEF 4 o R EHMNFGHEK T
Z8 S ATACAE s W 1 0T o 1% M R R AT R
BEHW A+ /AHRBER -

ATE——F+HZ+HH > AKX
R 482001 4 51 # 5 T & 321,900,000 72
BHETETEEKRSHE @%$“
A R AR F M A R (A3
w%mmmhﬁaﬁ%aéAi>
AL E S T (4 31,070,000 32 & #E E
BT &ZEANL) IS MERN (52
5380,000 53 X MEE 4% T% 55 A1) o il
M 45 F A 42 ] B2 40 00 IR 5 BEL R B A9 TR
AL o 5% 55 58 M 4 50 AT LA AT (1
RGBT —E——F 1+ H =
FTHHE T —JUFE+H W HTT
i S HE BB ) o MR E B A
B R 8 > 7 B B A 4R [ ERE R AT R
JehE > RSN - R — =
ENAZ=ZTH > #2001 FE 58 2 7 H

R o A AT (1 58 A% HEE A BE B (3 BB A
nwmmxgz~4¢2mwm

> R N AR N T I HE2001 4F F #)
%HZE$T%$%% e S S
10%) ©

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Under both the 2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme, the Board
of Directors of the Company may grant share options (the
“Options”) to Directors, employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries and such eligible participants at the discretion of
the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the terms
thereof, to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
at a price per Share not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant of the relevant Option,
which must be a trading day; (ii) the average of the closing price
of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the relevant Option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share. The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the share
option schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of the adoption of the
relevant share option scheme. Under the 2011 Scheme, such
10% represents 21,910,368 Shares, which continue to represent
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this annual report. No Director, employee or eligible participant
may exercise option(s) granted to it under the share option
scheme if such exercise would result in him or her subscribing
for more than 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of such new grant in any 12-month period. The
option period for which the options granted are exercisable,
shall be such period as notified by the Board of Directors of the
Company, save that it shall not be more than 10 years from the
date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable by
the grantee on acceptance of each grant. The offer of a grant of
share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
the offer.

On 25 October 2011, the Company granted a total of 21,900,000
Options under the 2001 Scheme to certain eligible participants,
including the Directors of the Company and Director of the
Company’s subsidiary (15,450,000 Options in aggregate being
granted to such persons), employees of the Group (1,070,000
Options in aggregate being granted to such persons) and
consultants of the Group (5,380,000 Options in aggregate
being granted to such persons). The services rendered by the
consultants to the Group were similar to employee’s services.
All such Options may be exercised from 25 October 2011 to 24
October 2019 at an exercise price of HK$1.13 per Share with no
vesting period. Options are cancelled if the grantee who are the
employees of the Group leaves the Group before the options are
exercised. As at 30 June 2013, the number of Shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the 2001 Scheme was 21,600,000 (2012: 21,900,000)
Shares, representing 9.9% (2012: 10%) of the Shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the 2001 Scheme.
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26. SR BESHS R DL Ry B Ik 2 26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

3K (4) BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
5 P #E AN AR B (I R R The following tables disclose details of the Company’s Options
JA ] 55 A N T R RE R B AR held by employees (including Directors and consultants) and
FE Rz &8 movements in such holdings during the year:
BRE_Z-Z4AEAH =1 HILERE For the year ended 30 June 2013
BB HE L H
Number of Options
g St REF—Z4
3 tH—H T AE B Ty 3 AHZTHH
gibnH TR AR W ARAT B #ih WAL B
Exercise Granted Exercised
price Outstanding during during i Outstanding
Date of grant per share  Exercisable period at 1.7.2012 the year the year the year at 30.6.2013
bk
HK$
20014 5k 31
2001 Scheme
xRl 1L13 —ZF——4 21,900,000 - (300,000) - 21,600,000
+H=1+%EA +HAZFIA
E2F N
+AZ+mA
25.10.2011 113 25102011 to 21,900,000 - (300,000) - 21,600,000
24.10.2019
TRAF He B ] 17 21,600,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 21,600,000
TRET- 217 (15 (7 #) 113 - 113 - 113

Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 1.13 - 1.13 - 1.13
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26. SR BESHS R DL Ry B Ik 2 26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

3K (4) BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
BE-ZZ -THENH=ZTHILEE For the year ended 30 June 2012
BRHEYH
Number of Options
REF——4 RE%F—-C4
(133 tA—H R AR REER  AAZTH
fiHHH frfes WA EEm W AR AT B #i T Bk Py
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed
price Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant per share  Exercisable period at 1.7.2011 the year the year the year at 30.6.2012
ki
HK$
200147 5} 4
2001 Scheme
—ER——IF 113 —ZF——4F = 21,900,000 = = 21,900,000
FAZtHLA FAZ+HA
e
FAZmA
25.10.2011 113 25.10.2011 to - 21,900,000 - - 21,900,000
24.10.2019
TR R A AT 21,900,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 21,900,000
TF 17 G R () - 113 - - 113

Weighted average exercise price (HKS) = 1.13 = — 113
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AR BA IR TE B 5 )

WE RN = HIEEE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

26. SR BESHS R DL Ry B Ik 2 26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

F 3% () BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
G AL bR 3R I AR A ) #E AR R Details of the movements of the Options during the year held by
A AR HE B g R R the Directors of the Company included in the above table are as
follows:
BRE_Z-Z4AEAH =1 HILERE For the year ended 30 June 2013
BB HE L H
Number of Options
g St REF—Z4
(133 tH—n RAEEE R 3 REER  ARZTH
gibnH TR AR W ARAT B #ih L WAL B
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed
price Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant per share  Exercisable period at 1.7.2012 the year the year the year at 30.6.2013
bk
HK$
20014 5t 8
2001 Scheme
xRl 113 —ZF——fF 14,450,000 - (300,000) - 14,150,000
+H=1+%EA +HAZFIA
E2F N
+AZ+mA
25.10.2011 113 25.10.2011 to 14,450,000 - (300,000) - 14,150,000
24.10.2019
TRAF He B ] 17 14,150,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 14,150,000
TRET- 217 (15 (7 #) 113 - 113 - 113

Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 1.13 - 1.13 - 1.13
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FR A B MR TE B 5 )

WEE—ZFNA =T HIEEE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

26. SR BESHS R DL Ry B Ik 2 26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

3K (4) BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

BRE_F-"SFEANA=ZTHILAEE

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BRHEYH
Number of Options

REF——4 RE%F—-C4
(133 tA—H R AR REER  AAZTH
fiHHH frfes WA EEm W AR AT B #i T Bk Py
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed
price Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant per share  Exercisable period at 1.7.2011 the year the year the year at 30.6.2012
ki
HK$
200147 5} 4
2001 Scheme
“F——f L3 —F——F - 14,450,000 - - 14,450,000
FAZtHLA FAZF+HA
E2ER-NE
+HZ+mA
25.10.2011 113 25.10.2011 to - 14,450,000 - - 14,450,000
24.10.2019
TR R A AT 14,450,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 14,450,000
TF 17 G R () - 113 - - 113
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) = 1.13 = — 113

FBW®R - F——F+H _+AHHZH
B R JBERE DA TE AT X E A R R
A B2 AP A #0375 0C ©

Binomial option pricing model was HK$0.375.

For the Options granted on 25 October 2011, the fair value of
each share option determined as at the date of grant using the
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R SR TE I 5 )

WEZE—=FANA=THILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

o JBe BE Wl 3 e DL Bt By Ko BE ik 2
A5 5K (41

26.

5 7 R G R I 4 S B BT A B
B R

I 2 i

H 1 i

JBe £y e i 46
Closing
share price
at date

of grant
W

HKS$

Grant date

SF
+HA-+HH
25.10.2011

1.13
1.13

A LA R HE Y- (A B A% MR R
Ty AR EE R AR T B
A B g ) B R ) AT e & N P (E A R
A R o IR T I B fE (B BE
FH T EBURG I N R 8 Bom s 8) -

bk 3% 85 & Ah 0 12001 4F 51 #1 %2011 4F
FHEE BEANH A s ME RS T O A R R
W AR —=4F A= THEZ
T — TAENH = B R RE ok
1748 o

AR BE N AT (58 RE A 30300,000 % 143
(& — T4 M) X AT NAT
Bp > A1 AR B R T 2 O A R
#e2.707T o
27. A AR
A fE R A b L — B E JH B
MR B FRMLRATE R SRR
TR - R -FE—-—=HENHA=Z+H>
AR EERERE SR A B
130,354,000 70 ( . & — T4 i
43,931,00070) ° A/ #4558 4 R %
LM BER AR 2 S EEE R
B AR - WA B A IS AR A R 2w R
T BRI 2 A FEI A E K o

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The following input and assumptions were used to calculate the
fair value of the Option:

T OB

VB HEAE 8] TS B BN A e B A R

Expected
dividend
yield

Risk-free
interest rate

Exercise Expected

price volatility
i
HKS$

Option life

1.13
1.13

48%
48%

JAN:R

8 years

3.5%
3.5%

1.3%
1.3%

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the Options are based on the Directors’ best estimate
and charges in the subjective input may materially affect the
fair value estimate. The value of awarded shares varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

Saved as disclosed, no other Option was granted under 2001
Scheme and 2011 Scheme since their adoption, and was
outstanding as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012.

Share options exercised during the year resulted in 300,000
(2012: nil) shares being issued. The related weighted average
share price at the time of exercise was HK$2.70 per share.

27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has given guarantees in respect of the settlement
of home loans provided by banks to the home buyers of a
property project in Beijing, the PRC. At 30 June 2013, the
Group had given guarantees in respect of such home loans of
HK$30,354,000 (2012: HK$43,931,000). The Directors of
the Company consider that the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts at their initial recognition and at the end of
the reporting period are insignificant on the basis of the low loan
to value ratio.
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BRE B IR TE N E )

WEZE—=FANA=THILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2013

28. ALE &G 28.

AR

BRI R o A 4R AR T A R 2
Y 3 J9T BTS2 AN AT 468 A AR R T
i R AR AR BB AR A

LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases in respect of rented premises for offices as follows:

e St —E— 4R

2013 2012

W T W T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

RN Within one year 2,075 788
I P S G SN In the second to fifth year inclusive 772 -
2,847 788

B o sk T 2 B AR (% — 4
M AR o A AR 2 fH & T B 2
o

AR 2y AL

o AR AH 4 i FT AR HE T AR 48 AL
A3 2E 0 R R B 2 M B AL U A T
oyt A A = e
BB -ZHENH=ZTHIEEER
T e B 2 Bk AR L A Ml A £ TS 58,255,000
JC (& — A - {7,158,00000) ©

RBWRMAR - DU B R
B ¢

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years (2012:
two years) and rentals are fixed over the term of the leases.

The Group as lessor:

Contingent rental income was calculated based on the excess
of certain percentage of revenue of the relevant operation of
the lessee that occupied certain of the properties over the fixed
portion of the monthly rentals. Contingent rental income earned
during the year ended 30 June 2013 is HK$8,255,000 (2012:
HK$7,158,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were

rented out under operating leases:

- St TR — TR

2013 2012

BT W or

HKS$’°000 HKS$°000

wEw*E Investment properties 1,612,870 1,565,779
) 2 Properties held for sale 16,441 13,861

ZEEETFYHEN A =4 mRM
A RE AL o ME A AR U OR R R
o HEFEMRZHETIEER -

These assets were leased out for average term of three years
with renewal options given to the lessees for further periods
not exceeding two years. Rentals are fixed over the term of the
leases.



DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A B IR VE R 5 o)

WEZE—=FANA=THILERE
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28. MLERYE &) 28. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

AL AE ()

The Group as lessor: (Continued)

B R R - A 4R B SRR AT AN
18 B A 7 AR T TR A e R AL B

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments

HaZE R under non-cancellable operating leases:
RS SE— T4
2013 2012
BT BT T
HKS$°000 HK$°000
AR Within one year 78,117 72,768
TSR B H AN In the second to fifth year inclusive 83,069 78,897
FAEDL I Over five years 5,479 8,321
166,665 159,986

29. 3B p AR A 29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

() A ZFERREA+ T — HHi > A (a)  Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated a defined

EE BTG G R E SO E
PR AR AR #1552 k8
et |) o WZEHE 2 & E s
et E g A AL 2 K E
BB BE o ik AR B T TS 7 B
BT AR R E OB KR #
SUJ A< £ [ 5t mT LA Bl R AR K
DA A 46 1 H AR 2 Ak

HoZZZF+_A—HE &
S5 W e ST R B A wt E o R K
BB 2 B T A A — Rtk 2
FRHE e BT 5 B W B SR
B BLIE 2 BB - 4B 4wt B CAR
AR 58 2 e 3 Ak 91 1 o AR
B IR M o B B
FE P B L S REE L S SA AR
P 2 7 7 B B SR o ARHR R BT
ak# G- R FE K R B 5 2R
R HLBIRT B 2 b S AF ik -
e AT Ao 2 T A A R R
AL M H R B -

contribution retirement benefit scheme (“Defined
Contribution Scheme”) for its qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
an independent trustee. Where there are employees who
leave the Defined Contribution Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the amount of the forfeited
contributions would be used to reduce future contributions
payable by the Group.

With effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has set
up a MPF Scheme. Members of the Defined Contribution
Scheme were given one-time option to choose to transfer
to the MPF Scheme or remain in the existing scheme. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
rates specified in the rules. No forfeited contributions are
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years by the employer.

107



FoOEF-SEEAR | EAREARA A

Ay B 05 MR T R )
BE-F-=FAA=1THILFE
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F 5 I R R R R K o A e
BT 5] B A 5 18 4 K H A A
T W 45 3R A AR AR AR A A R O
WK o JIAS SR A% % 5 R ET
B 2 Lb SR A AT ke

A BE A 3R K AR A KO
#0280,000 78 ( T — L 4F :
213,0007T) E 5 A A o

1 B PR #& 1k 5 7€ {3t 308 AR st 31 i
T 22 M RO T 4 BE 2 i T
FIt > w4k IH AT AR A S
R85 52 B OB AR Gt 34 E 18 R
A AF JBE JE A 3K o

MR A B AP Bk ) B R R > AR
BFF G A ) B A [R) 2 o) 48 W) ZEUAR B
At 5 K G I b B R E > A B
5T A B A 2 20% K 9% - 1E AR
NI R /N = B 2R VN
18 I R o

AR FE N 3R AR AR AR 3K
#229,000 G ( & — T AF ¢ s
204,0007T) B FF AR A o

B Bt 5 2527 T8 Br B &% A 4 [ k4R AT
BTHTHRZAAR SR
R AN A4 E IR B =R AT A7 K
7 18,668,000 L ( & — TUAE  HE M
11,823,000 70 ) #& 1 T 4R 17 > E B T
ERERZZSEERERZIEME -
TE A 1041% (. F — 4 045%)
ZEHEBERRFE > TEROBLEE
Hi 7z E GE DL I AH BE W S B I T 8R
175 G 5 B 5 % O 2 % 4 4 3K
(AR A & /2 ) 1R R B o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Continued)

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the Defined Contribution Scheme and the MPF Scheme
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income represent contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the schemes.

During the year, retirement benefits contributions charged
to profit or loss are HK$280,000 (2012: HK$213,000).

There are no forfeited contributions in both years
which arose upon employees leaving the Defined
Contribution Scheme and which are available to reduce
the contributions payable by the Group under Defined
Contribution Scheme in the future years.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity
are required to contribute 20% and 9% of the stipulated
salary set by the Beijing and Shenzhen local governments,
respectively, to the retirement benefits schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of their employees.

During the year, the retirement benefits contributions
charged to profit or loss are HK$229,000 (2012:
HK$204,000).

In addition to the guarantees given by the Group for home loans
provided by banks to certain buyers as disclosed in note 27,
the Group has also pledged its bank deposits of HK$8,668,000
(2012: HK$11,823,000) to banks to secure such home loans
granted to the home buyers. The deposits carry floating interest
rate of 0.41% (2012: 0.45%) per annum on average and will
be released upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate and the relevant property pledged to the
bank; and (ii) the full repayment of mortgaged loan by the home
buyers.
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30.

31.

L )

RoE—ZFEANH=1H RKEED
] 61 AT HE P AL b BB R E W
¥ H AR (E 4 W %5 789,655,000 7C ( —
T — AE k739,561,000 7)) 5 A ##
T RAT R G AR Ak A K
HH S T DA R HE AR A R AR R
B BRA R (AN w) M 3 2 & A T
28 ] ) 100% B HE fE 55 2 0y o DA 4G
BT AREE—WMITAE -

SLAT B B 2 B S
BR A B GE 20 8 S 17 I A 4 B A > AR KR

P BEL AT Bl W ) S AR AR BE N 2R
Ll

30.

31.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS (Continued)

At 30 June 2013, the Group had pledged its investment property
situated in Shanghai, the PRC, with a carrying amount of
HK$789,655,000 (2012: HK$739,561,000), an assignment of
rental and sale proceeds from the investment properties and
a charge over share in respect of the Group’s 100% equity
interest in Move On International Limited, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company to the bank to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those disclosed in notes 8 and 17, during the year, the
Group has entered into the following transactions with related

companies:

e St R g

2013 2012

BT o I or

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

BN Rental income received 506 641

B AT L 4 R A S (B At ) Rental and management fees paid (note) 2,460 2,598

B A5 R R AR s 2 Consultancy service fees paid 1,000 1,000

[EEORAELE- Agency fees paid 742 736
Mt at o 5% 5% B B E 2 58 5y W 2 T 4 RE IR R A Note: Certain amounts of these related party transactions also constituted

RS (ERREBH SRS I A
PR 7 &% 2 b BRI (T ki BRI )) 25 8
14A) o A/ ® ¥ 3 B8 5 b RN = B
LA HSRBLE > HH B 4 78 6 45 76 AR 4R
ISR S | EET -

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors of the Company
has complied with the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules by including the relevant disclosure in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” in the annual report.
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31.

BARBEZRYS 4w 31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
W EFE—=ZFEAH=1THA_-F—_ Other outstanding balances with the following related
FENHZ=Z1+H > FIIH AR ZH companies, which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
fth o 8 2 45 i (5% 55 3CE & ST~ demand, at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 are as follows:

BB IR AR R R R ) s T

—R—=4E ST
2013 2012

#W T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$'000

MAE G K H AR 2 Deposits due from related companies
R i A R W D i included in trade and other receivables 429 350

MANE S B HAME IR 2 Amounts due from related companies
JE WS B B ) OE included in trade and other receivables 741 616

MAZE 5 N HABREST BE# 2 Amount due to a related company

A A B T s 7] A included in trade and other payables 564 500
I 2 I e R K Amounts due from a non-controlling
shareholder 960 938
AR A T A s ) A T The related companies are companies controlled by certain
Y8 ] e Directors of the Company.
AEBLEEEMANELTAESE > K The Group’s key management personnel are all Directors,

SEHTNFE S TE I RS 1 H N B R o details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 11.
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32. 7 2 v B R DLk

AR w5 R R B IR DL R A

B
T I 25 7 M 2

W - B A

B 24 5

A O A
ST 4% 0 S B &

HERME

=L
At 1B AT AR BK
R 2% ) A

HEARE

B T fik
&N
it (M7t )

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

reporting period includes:

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the

TR =4 TR T4
2013 2012
BT T T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
Assets
Interests in subsidiaries 410,547 264,934
Property, plant and equipment 27 27
Loans to subsidiaries 629,566 737,835
Other receivables and prepayments 335 317
Bank balances and cash 13,886 13,711
Total assets 1,054,361 1,016,824
Liabilities
Other payables 4,388 3,192
Amounts due to subsidiaries 176,131 159,224
Total Liabilities 180,519 162,416
873,842 854,408
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 219,404 219,104
Reserves (note) 654,438 635,304
873,842 854,408
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32. AAFAMBRIE ) 32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Mzt - Gt Note: Reserves

B A Jt 2 B i
Iy e B S it i R A5t
Capital Share
Share Translation redemption option Retained

premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
WL B¥TIL  #FToT BT #FTT BT
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000

W ZE—— 4 At 1 July 2011

+tH—H 426,608 166,933 1,644 - 18,977 614,162
4 JEE Vi ) Profit for the year = = = - 4,737 4,737
T 507 A 2. Exchange differences arising on

5 translation - 16,956 - = = 16,956
A AE JE A T Total comprehensive income

e A 48 %R for the year - 16,956 - - 4,737 21,693
TGRS 45 3 I/ Recognition of equity-settled

By BBt 2 AT 3K share-based payments — — — 8,213 — 8,213
B4 B S Cash dividends

(Mt it 5513 76) (note 13) - - - - (8,764) (8,764)
EE A At 30 June 2012

NH=+H 426,608 183,889 1,644 8,213 14,950 635,304
A 4 JEE i ) Profit for the year = = = = 9,324 9,324
[FE 52, 2 A= 2. Exchange differences arising on

o e A translation - 19,639 = = = 19,639
A AR JE A T Total comprehensive income

[N E for the year - 19,639 - - 9,324 28,963
AT A Issue of shares 151 - - (113) - 38
B4 i S Cash dividends

(it 5513 78) (note 13) = = = = (9,867) (9,867)
) S At 30 June 2013

AH=TH 426,759 203,528 1,644 8,100 14,407 654,438
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33. BEW)E A e

R-F—=ZEAA=Z+HE-F -
ERNA=Z1TH TEMBAR ZF+E
o

33.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2013 and 30
June 2012 are as follows:

KRR CEIRA/
WBAT 48 W/t R CHATRBULRA /ISR AMEATEARE R
Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid up issued/registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration/operation share capital/registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
i 1 i
Ordinary Others
v St “F-CE v St “EF-TE Rk SRk
013 2012 013 013 2012
R AEARAT Bk Ehor  Efmx - - 100% 100 BN
Ardent Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,200 HKS1,200 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
TRrERaERE R - - FAN000 EE30000000 9% % MERERER
HRAA (Hit—) (Wit
Beijing Longfast Property ~ PRC (note 1) - - US$30,000,000  US$30,000,000 9% 95%  Property investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (note I) (note 1) development
Rl EARA Bt i 599 - - 100% 1009 fRffERE
Billion Stock Investment ~ Hong Kong HKS? HKS2 - - 100% 100%  Provision of nominee
Limited services
Broad Capital Investments 3208 J& 2B PEAVH F4IT - = 100% 100%  HEER
Limited British Virgin Islands Uss1 Uss! - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
T EXARAR B i 79 - - 100% 100 HEEE
China Gain Properties Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
ENHRAR EREARE 00 RESI0TC - - 100% 10y BEER
Dynamic (B.V.I) Limited ~ British Virgin Islands USS$50,000 US850,000 - - 100% 100%  Tnvestment holding
EAEHRARAR  HBEARE U i - - 100% 0w ¥
Dynamic Management British Virgin Islands HKS7 HK$7 - = 100% 100%  Financing
(Beijing) Limited
EAEAREARAR Ak i i - - 100% 0% fE{EERRE
Dynamic Management Hong Kong HKS2 HKS$2 - = 100% 100%  Provision of
Services Limited management services
Dynamic (Nominees) B wr T - = 100% 0% REERRE
Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HK$2 - - 100% 100%  Provision of
management services
B HE (R) EREATE b AV #2171 - - 100% 100% R
AHERERAR
Dynamic Real Estate (China) ~ British Virgin Islands USS1 Uss! - - 100% 100%  Management
Management Consultancy consultancy

Limited
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33.

FEW B A 6w )

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

AR CHIRA/
WA 48 W/ ik b/ BB CHITRBRA /A alEAufERE  LERH
Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid up issued/registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration/operation share capital/registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Wik )
Ordinary Others
e St i S
2013 2013
Glory Diamond Inc EREATE A £2101 - - 100% 100 BEER
British Virgin Islands USS10 Uss10 - - 100% 100%  Tnvestment holding
BABEARAR F i o - - 100% love  BEER
Harvic Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS2 HK$2 - = 100% 100%  Investment holding
REREARA SRELHE XAV 211 - - 100% 00 BEER
High Grand Investments British Virgin Islands Uss1 Uss! - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BRERARA F # AV - - 100% 100 HERE
Move On International Hong Kong HKS1 HKS1 - = 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
i Notes:
— TE B R 2 b R RE S O EE B R A 1. Beijing Longfast Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Longfast”)
PR 2 ) (1 db o A w 1) sk i 2% b S0 & 1 established in the PRC is registered as sino-foreign co-operative joint
- /NI I | A N B N I venture. Beijing Longfast had a registered capital of US$30,000,000. The
30,000,000 7 © = i A 4F BT % 7% 2 % amount of US$30,000,000 disclosed in both years above represents capital
430,000,000 7C )G A< 45 [ BT /2 2 A - R paid by the Group. However, the Group’s entitlement to share the profit
MM > A A [ 48 [R) 7 AT 4 4G L 50 R I 95% F) and net assets in Beijing Longfast was agreed to be at 95%.
e B E o
= Kk % 71 % BR 22 ® & Glory Diamond Inc. H§ 4% 2. Other than Dynamic (B.V.1.) Limited and Glory Diamond Inc., which are
NREEEERAI - A WEA R 5 wholly-owned directly by the Company, all subsidiaries are held by the
M HEEEA - Company indirectly.
= R DL LR A W 2 R R 3. The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
[ AU E A A Mg A R SRR A opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Z1 B Al B JB 4 R R R R o Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
PO~ A BB A T R AR AR SR AT B A A AT IR ] A 4. None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
W BEATAT ] 55 w8 55 - year, or at any time during the year.
34. BB 34. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Ty BLAS AR BE S Rk — B> A T B
B BCE R B -

Certain comparative figures have been reclassitied to conform

with current year’s presentation.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B 5 41k 22

LN BT B4 2 b2 45 & & DL M. A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities for the

B years stated is as follows:
Tt 3 CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
BEAH =T HIEE
Year ended 30 June
ZEFNAF ZE——1 F—= E-ER
2009 2011 ) 2013
BT T BET T BT T V. e
HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000
() (M) (K1) (&)
(note) (note) (Restated) (Restated)
HER Turnover 86,722 126,437 100,096 94216 124,504
RAEFEARNFHEAR N Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
JEE A 1 (& 9R) the owners of the Company (62,467) 36,521 75,814 85,003 123,166
FRAEARF (1) Basic earnings (loss) per share
(B M) (Hong Kong cents) (28.5) 16.7 34.6 38.8 56.2
5 IR A Diluted earnings per share
(B ) (Hong Kong cents) N/A N/A N/A 385 54.1
oW AR CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY

W - el Rl
g ¥

S B 4 Al
S 7R A
e

i i

EEME
EYNGE EPN T E
TEPE IRt A
il 5l

AT R

— AR EE

IRIEBIAA R
B B

A fRAME

RAHZ1H
At 30 June

SERE CRE Rk SRSk
2010 2011 2012 2013

BT T BT T BT T BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HEKS$’000
(i) (i) (#EHEF) (HB &)

(note) (note) (Restated) (Restated)

Property, plant and equipment 3,568 2911 2,447 2222 2,049
Investment properties 1,517,816 1,535,437 1,645,704 1,737,936 1,867,428
Interest in a jointly controlled entity 49,335 55,457 65,759 60,972 85,614
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 215,572 217,826 228,154 246,393 236,927
Other receivables 8,352 744 - - -
Current assets 257,528 206,791 207,545 228,256 259,918
Total assets 2,052,171 2,019,166 2,149,609 2,275,719 2,451,936
Equity attributable to the owners

of the Company 1,430,684 1,474,313 1,511,295 1,626,861 1,781,014
Non-controlling interest 27,790 29,082 27,789 29,626 32,851
Total equity 1,458,474 1,503,395 1,539,084 1,656,487 1,813,865
Bank loans

— due after one year 193,000 - 160,210 205,718 -
Deferred tax liabilities 92,855 94,669 212,026 231,355 261,041
Current liabilities 307,842 421,102 238,289 182,219 377,030
Total liabilities 593,697 515,771 610,525 619,292 638,071

2,052,171 2,019,166 2,149,609 2,275,779 2,451,936

Mat BE_F—-FFASAA=ZTHIEERZFZIFSAH Note: Restatement in respect of the adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred
= b H kAR R N A B BR AN A s R A 12 Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets” has not been made for the years ended 30
SR BERTAS) TR E B IH — A0 B G 2 2 A0k ) Ak i June 2010 and 30 June 2009.

H I o
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PROFORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET OF AFFILIATED COMPANY
BEA R Z % G IR ER AR

MR_Z—Z=ZFEANA=Z1+H: AXF4T—
MgE AR BHEELR (ERATBH S
5 A R wl e85 AR (T v sl )
E513.16065) B L E 8% I B & RN T ¢

Affiliated company

TN #EEE R AR T
([ 93 ])

A 4R ] A T U1 3 A SOBOH B A A L R £
RN RG> REAE A AR S T RS R SRR R A 17 A
P

BB AR AT R R AR RO R
AR -

AR b TR 56 13.22 Mk 9 7 A B R AR E
W FE—=ZFEANA=Z1TH YIENES S
DF & AR T AR 4R B TE 1 3 o E A HE R
WEEmr

66 5 2 wi) A 5% 45 BF T LR

Details of advances given to an affiliated company as at 30 June
2013, which exceeded 8% under the assets ratio as defined under rule
13.16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) are as follows:

L)
L E¥ipid A
Percentage of
equity held by
the Group

ok 4

Amount of
advances
BT T
HK$°000

Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour
Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”)

49% 236,927
The advances to Zhen Wah by the Group have been accounted for
as amount due from a jointly controlled entity, details of which are
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The amount of advances are unsecured and repayable after the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

Pursuant to the continuing disclosure requirements under rule 13.22 of
the Listing Rules, the proforma combined balance sheet of Zhen Wah
and the attributable interest of the Group in Zhen Wah as at 30 June
2013 are disclosed as follows:

PROFORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET OF
THE AFFILIATED COMPANY

i % & bk A 4R

¥ AR JE A Ak

Proforma Group’s

combined attributable

balance sheet interest

W T T BT or

HK$°000 HK3$°000

IE B A E (M At Non-current assets (note) 255,925 125,403

I B & Current assets 62,194 30,475
it B A Current liabilities (15,549) (7,619)
i B £ A Non-current liabilities (236,927) (116,094)

FEE Net assets 65,643 32,165

B aE ¢ B LA (o v R N R A B VR IR A B —
2 o % R A 3 A 2 A R B SOE A
ELHSR T o YN HE O SO A AR K > 3 R
W 2E AL B 22 R T TE AT SR 4 I % R AL IE
LA TR R A0 P P R o R X 2 o

Note: The assets include properties held for development which represent prepaid lease
payments of land use rights and direct reclamation costs for a piece of land situated
at Tung Kok Tau in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China with the land use
right. Zhen Wah has paid all land premium and is in the process of negotiating
with relevant government authorities for redevelopment due to the re-zoning and

re-planning of the city on which the properties are located.
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ANALYSIS OF PROPERTIES HELD
RS REEVE Zigil]

o E-=4FENHA=1TH T AFEY  Particulars of properties held for sale at 30 June 2013:
EZFEWTR

Wk  CRREEE % T
fY Tl R 4 B RLRR  AEMER iR}
Approximate
developed Expected
Approximate gross floor Stage of Group’s date of
Location site area area completion interests completion
A R B EERAE AR 8688 F N S35 95% AR
1 (e
1 B H % R 19,143 F 77 R
MR NE
11 [ 5 —
FoMEE=H
2R W
Unsold portion of Phase I, Residential and N/A 8,088 sq.ft. Completed 95% N/A
Phase I and Phase III of apartment residential
Chaoyang Garden 19,143 sq.ft.
No. 25 Nan Lane apartment
Ganlouyuan
Chaoyang District
Beijing

The People’s Republic of China

W E—-=4FENH=1+H &4 H xIHE  Particulars of properties held for development for sale held by the
PEHINFI A SR E 2 A EYE 25 1E  jointly controlled entity of the Group at 30 June 2013:
mr

Wgwst  CRREEE EEE AN
fY Tl R 4 B RLRR  AEHER o
Approximate
developable Expected
Approximate gross floor Stage of Group’s date of
Location site area area completion interests completion
iz 7 o A RN B £ - Wk 1,849,105 F 5 W 2,523,082°F I i R8s 1 49% AR
&R AR Y3HES tE  Efi /A8
HE 1 Al 129,168°F 77 R BB 7
WA — R s
64,584 75 R
[GES
Assite located in Residential, hotel 1,849,105 sq.ft. 2,523,082 sq.ft. ~ Temporary port 49% N/A
Tung Kok Tau and commercial residential operations/
Shekou 129,168 sq.ft. master plan
Nanshan District hotel rezoning
Shenzhen 64,584 sq.ft.
Guangdong Province commercial

The People’s Republic of China
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ANALYSIS OF PROPERTIES HELD (Continued)

CIESRE/E Zig/NE Y

R-FE—-=ZFNA=Z1TH IRFEREY
EZFEMT

i

Location

A A R LA B

b/

T T

AN a1

e e B R 7 A S 3 1 3 A

CEE A T OREE T = R )

Levels 7 to 22 (without levels 13 and 14)
West Tower, Eton Place

No. 69 Dongfang Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai

The People’s Republic of China

A A R 3 A B

Jb

1 155 [ H 5%

HHE A
S~ 5 T R S e
J 58 = W T T

Car parking spaces in Phase I, II, III
and commercial portion of Phase I1I

No. 25 Nan Lane

Ganlouyuan

Chaoyang District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China

Particulars of properties held for investment at 30 June 2013:

& LT 4R

Usage Lease term

e Sk

Office Medium

LEYEGER ] T

Commercial/ Medium
Car-parking
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and management of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) strive to establish and uphold
good practices and procedures on corporate governance. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise an effective Board,
prudent internal and risk control, transparency and accountability to its
stakeholders including shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees
and the public.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, being the financial year under
review, the Board and the management of the Company have been
continually reviewing and enhancing the corporate governance
practices of the Company with reference to local and international
best practices from time to time. The Board believes that its continued
efforts in enhancing the Company’s corporate governance practices
have contributed to the business growth of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) in the past years.

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company has applied the
principles and adhered to the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as amended from time to time (“Listing Rules”),
save and except for the deviations as mentioned below, and where
appropriate, met the recommended best practices in the CG Code with
an aim to safeguard the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Company has also established an internal corporate governance
code (compliance guide) (the “Internal CG Code”), the contents of
which are in line with the CG Code and has revised the Internal CG
Code from time to time according to the relevant amendments to the
Listing Rules. The Internal CG Code aims to facilitate compliance
with the CG Code and to give guidance to Directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) and the senior management of the Company in
this respect. The Board will continue to monitor and review the
corporate governance practices and procedures of the Company to
ensure compliance with the CG Code and to enhance its practices and
procedures.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors on the same terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as amended from time to time (the “Model Code”). Each
Director has confirmed to the Company that he has complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
30 June 2013.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Executive Directors (the
“Executive Directors™) and four Independent Non-executive Directors
(the “Independent Non-executive Directors”). The members of the
Board during the year ended 30 June 2013 and as at 23 September
2013 are as follows:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua
(nominated as Chairman
on 8 February 2013)

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao

Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales
(appointed on 1 April 2013)

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
(Executive Director)
(Executive Director)

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
Mr. WONG Sai Tat
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Dr. SY Robin
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
(appointed on 8 February 2013)

(Executive Director)
(Executive Director)
(Executive Director)
(Executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHUA Domingo
(ceased as Chairman on 8 February
2013 and resigned as Executive
Director on 1 April 2013)

(Chairman and Executive Director)

During the period from 1 January 2013 to 7 February 2013, the number
of Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company fell below
one-third of the Board under rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, which
required to appoint Independent Non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board of Directors by 31 December 2012.
With effect from 8 February 2013, the Company has appointed Mr.
GO Patrick Lim as an Independent Non-executive Director, and hence
the Company has been in compliance with rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules.

Currently, the Company has four Independent Non-executive
Directors and more than one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence and the
Board considers that each Independent Non-executive Director meets
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and is independent.

For diversity of the members of the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills and knowledge, age, ethnicity and relevant years of experience
and expertise and for relationships (if any) among them and between
the chairman and chief executive officer, please refer to the “Profile
of Management” and the section on “Directors” interests in competing
business” in the “Directors’ Report” on pages 14 to 17 and pages 19 to
30 respectively of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities and Accountabilities

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives and
development plans, monitoring the performance of the business and
senior management, and ensuring sound corporate governance of the
Group. It also monitors the financial performance, the internal controls
and risk management of the Group’s business operations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running the operations of the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board.

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management with department heads responsible for different aspects
of the business and functions of the Group. The Independent Non-
executive Directors serve the function of bringing independent
judgment on the development, performance, internal controls,
corporate governance and risk management of the Group through
their contributions in the meetings of the Board and committees of the
Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, a total of five regular Board
meetings were held, four of which were at approximately quarterly
intervals. Details of Directors’ attendance record of such regular Board
meetings during the year are as follows:

Attendance/Nos. of

Board meetings

Directors to be attended
Mr. TAN Harry Chua 5/5
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank 5/5
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 5/5
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 1/1

(appointed on 1 April 2013)

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming 5/5
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 5/5
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 5/5
Mr. WONG Sai Tat 5/5
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 5/5
Dr. SY Robin 5/5
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 5/5
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 3/3

(appointed on 8 February 2013)

Mr. CHUA Domingo 4/4
(resigned on 1 April 2013)



122

2 ) 4 AT PR A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¢ Continued)

EERBEE @

B B %% I

AR EREI R AEEERE > AQFE
Ju 1) 4 B R A B R B T > DA
M FHB AL TETEHFATEN
DARAET 2 ~ i B R EE R 2 i
E DS SN AT R /A
FAEA O BRAE R TR L2 Ak R AR ¢
17T fe PR o 1 A6 B g A U AR B
ZERR o A2 B AN A I ) R bR
SU) e JFCAth 28 Y B R E ) BB B o LLAREAR
AR R L RAF A IR R
AN BN ESR (A ) R IR R AL
BT U A AR DL DR 15 AR AR R 3
W5 B 888 A B A RR A > HoT oy BIRR bl
I e A B 8 RRE N B AL KR

UL Ak > A8 o S R iy S S E O
BEL 17 A T S R R SR RELA BR) 22 AR RR o B B
BRAE c ARFC A EFRG A EER
B EPE - e ST IR R

MR A B s R S R 2 BIR
B A <7 BN SCEE A6S IR Tk > 2l 3 5 (B
BE WA SE A - BRAK AT L - BRIZ B B4 -
TAN Michael Gonzales 7G4 ~ R & W64 -~ #
WENESEAE ~ M A e~ it E - sl
7 56 42~ SY Robin i 4- ~ 2 # A i 42 %GO
Patrick Lim 56 4) > ¥ B £ 8L [ %l 55 335 &) >
oL 4G o W ES R PR AR ER - IR
RS E e - RS KT R
A L2 FISMAMGHE o Bhok > AR /&
T B A4 F] # 5 1 TAN Michael Gonzales /¢ 4=
J GO Patrick Lim 56 4E » O 4% B 1R 5F I8 A6.1
o6 2 ST UG SC 4 8 ol 2 0F Sl B il A
DVBR AN A/l 2 3675 K T Ml JHL e 9 A A
ENZELLRE -BLERE AN A
PR A AR B BRI R -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Training and Development

For training and continuing professional development of Directors,
the Company provides relevant information and publications to all
Directors on a regular basis to keep them abreast of the latest changes
and development in the industry, commercial, legal, statutory and
regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its business,
and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company to ensure that the Directors’
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company also updates Directors from time to time on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Each newly
appointed Director (if any) receives induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend external forums or
training courses on relevant topics for their continuous professional
development. There are arrangements in place for Directors to obtain
continuing professional development at the Company’s expense

whenever necessary.

In accordance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’
training and continuous professional development, all Directors
(namely, Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr.
TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, Mr. CHEUNG Chi
Ming, Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, Mr.
WONG Sai Tat, Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth, Dr. SY Robin, Dr.
FOK Kam Chu, John and Mr. GO Patrick Lim) have participated in
the training activities described above including, amongst others, in-
house briefing, luncheon talks, training courses and/or seminars, as
well as self-study and coaching and mentoring provided to internal
staff. In addition, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales and Mr. GO Patrick
Lim, the newly appointed Directors of the Company in the year had
received the above formal induction to understand the business of the
Company and aware their responsibilities and duties under the laws
and regulations in accordance with code provision A.6.1 of the CG
Code. Each Director has provided a record of training they received

during the year to the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of the chairman (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer (the “CEO”) of the Company are
segregated and separately undertaken by different officers to ensure a
balance of power and authority as set out in the Internal CG Code.

Mr. TAN Harry Chua, the Chairman, provides leadership and
is responsible for driving effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice, and overseeing
the Group’s overall direction and strategic planning. Dr. CHAN
Wing Kit, Frank, the CEO, is mainly responsible for implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved by the Board and
managing the business and affairs of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
(there are currently no other Non-executive Directors of the Company)
are appointed for a term of two years subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).
The Bye-laws stipulate that every Director will be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years at annual general meeting of
the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee for overseeing specific aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each
committee is established with defined terms of reference, which are
posted on the website of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) since 2005 with terms of reference,
which meet the requirements set out in paragraph B.1.2 of the CG
Code. The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 30 June 2013 and as at 23 September 2013 are as follows:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua
(nominated on 8 February 2013)

(Chairman and Executive Director)

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Dr. SY Robin
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. CHUA Domingo
(ceased on 8 February 2013)

(Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Chairman and Executive Director)

*  Chairman of Remuneration Committee
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing,
evaluating and/or recommending to the Board the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management; the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing the policy of such remuneration; and the specific
remuneration packages (if any) of individual Executive Directors and
senior management.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the members of the Remuneration
Committee performed the following works pursuant to action and
resolutions in writing signed by all members in accordance with its

terms of reference:

1. recommended to the Board the emolument of two newly
appointed Directors, Mr. GO Patrick Lim and Mr. TAN Michael
Gonzales respectively;

2. reviewed the emolument of respective Directors for the year
ended 30 June 2013 in accordance with the model set out in
paragraph B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code; and

3. reviewed the emolument policy of employees of the Group.

As such, no meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee
during the year ended 30 June 2013.

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) since 2012 with terms of reference, which
meet the requirements as set out in paragraph A.5.2 of the CG Code.
The members of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 30
June 2013 and as at 23 September 2013 are as follows:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua*
(nominated on 8 February 2013)

(Chairman and Executive Director)

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Dr. SY Robin
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. CHUA Domingo*
(ceased on 8 February 2013)

(Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Chairman and Executive Director)

*  Chairman of Nomination Committee
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the composition, structure, size and diversity of the Board; formulating
and monitoring the policy for nomination of Directors; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors. Criteria adopted by the Nomination
Committee in considering whether the relevant personnel are suitable
as Directors include their qualifications, experience, expertise, skills
and knowledge, ethnical, age, cultural background and so on in view
of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the policy of diversity of
the Board (the “Policy”) as adopted by the Board during the year and
summarised as follows:

Purpose

to increase diversity at the level of the Board;

2. to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and quality of its
performance; and

3. to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan and

sustainable and balanced development of the Company.
Measurable Objectives

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to regional, industry
and professional experience, skills and knowledge, relevant length
of services, gender, age, race, ethnicity, cultural and educational
background and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate(s) will
bring to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Monitoring and Review

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the Policy and
recommend any revisions thereof (if appropriate) to the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the members of the Nomination
Committee performed the following works pursuant to action and
resolutions in writing signed by all members in accordance with its

terms of reference:

1. recommended to nominate Mr. TAN Harry Chua as chairman
of the Board after reviewed the existing composition and
succession planning of the Board;

2. recommended to the Board the appointment of Mr. GO Patrick
Lim as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
and Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales as Executive Director of the
Company respectively;

3. reviewed the draft Policy of diversity of the Board for Board’s
adoption;

4. reviewed the size, composition and structure and diversity of the
Board, and assessed the balance of skills and experience of the
Board as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the business of the Company and its
subsidiaries and reviewed the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors.

As such, no meetings were held by the Nomination Committee during
the year ended 30 June 2013.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Board has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) since 1999 with terms of reference, which meet the
requirements as set out in paragraph C.3.3 of the CG Code. During the
year, the Board has delegated the functions of corporate governance to
the Audit Committee with additional terms of reference as set out in
paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code. The members of the audit committee
during the year ended 30 June 2013 and as at 23 September 2013 are as
follows:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Dr. SY Robin
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
(appointed on 8 February 2013)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:
Relationship with the auditors

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-

appointment and removal of the external auditor;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

Review of the financial information, financial reporting system and
internal control procedures

3. to review and monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the annual report, half-year report and accounts
of the Company and to review significant financial reporting

judgments contained in them;

4. to oversee the financial reporting system and procedures of
internal control of the Group;

Relationship with employees
S. to review arrangement for employees of the Group to raise

concerns about possible improprieties of financial reporting,
internal control or other matters; and
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)
Corporate governance function

6. to review and monitor corporate governance functions delegated
by the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, two meetings were held by
the Audit Committee for, amongst others, the following which were
submitted to the Board for discussion and/or approval in accordance
with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee:

1. recommended the re-appointment of the external auditor; and
reviewing the financial reporting system and procedures of
internal controls of the Group and the draft audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2012;

2. reviewed the draft unaudited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 31 December 2012; and

3. reviewed and monitored the policies and practices on corporate
governance and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements as stated in corporate governance reports of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2012 and for the six months
ended 31 December 2012.

Details of the attendance record of members in the meetings of Audit

Committee during the year are as follows:

Attendance /

Nos. of meetings

Members to be attended
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 3/3
Dr. SY Robin 3/3
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 3/3
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 1/1

(appointed on 8 February 2013)
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WME _F—=Z4FNH=Z1THIL4EERN > A  During the year ended 30 June 2013, audit and non-audit services were
N ) B A SR A R o BE SRR 7 @& HARAT ([# provided to the Group by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the auditor of the
Y ) oA EE R L IEFEZIRY o Company (the “Auditor”). The analysis of services and remuneration
MR 0 M I Bl 5% 4 IR W5 A B O © fF X MEAT  paid and payable in connection therewith are as follows:

Sk '3/

© 2 1t IR % % | Services provided Amount
T T HK$'000
IR Audit services
. ARAEREE % — . Audit fee for consolidated financial statements
ZHENHAZTHIEFEE of the Group and mandatory provident funds and
G A S IR TE S AR 4 H defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
5 TR A i 4 B R E ik of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 1,112
OB AR I E B#F A%
%M 1,112
I A A2 s Non-audit services
. TR E B — 4PN . Fee for reviewing preliminary announcement
A=THILFERFEE of final results and continuing connected
BN TR RS 5 transactions for the year ended 30 June 2013 82
iD= §if! 82
. HFR#SE L — 4N . Fee for tax consultancy service of property
A=+ HIEFEE R development project known as Chaoyang
% B A E b E g R Garden in Beijing for the year ended 30 June
TECH BB 0 R B 2013 163
A 163

EHE B RGBS AL B ARt & The Audit Committee is of the view that the Auditor’s independence
WA PR E NI ERIRE A &AM and objectivity will not be affected by the provision of the
H 8 S K K BLE - abovementioned limited scope of the non-audit services to the Group.

FABBFEER . EREHEFLZ B @¥E  There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
B BRI BRI BRI ZEE on the selection, re-appointment, resignation or dismissal of its
BEAT AT AN — B R/ - external auditor during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Auditor’s statement of reporting responsibilities and
report on material uncertainty (if any) of the Group are set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 31 to 32 to this annual
report.

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group has net current liabilities
of approximately HK$117,112,000, which include mainly the bank
loans due within one year, tax payable and trade and other payable of
HK$205,718,000, HK$105,121,000 and HK$62,201,000 respectively.
The Directors closely monitor the cash flows of the Group and, upon
maturity of the bank loans, would arrange refinancing. Taking into
account of the internally generated funds, the available banking
facilities and the low gearing ratio, the Directors consider that the
Group will be able to meet its financial obligation when they fall due.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Board and the Audit
Committee have conducted and completed a review in respect of the
effectiveness of the internal control of the Group with the objectives
of ensuring that:

. high level management controls are adequately defined,

. operational controls are in place, sufficient and effective;

. income is properly received, recorded and supported;

. expenses are of proper nature and are properly approved; and
. assets are properly safeguarded.

Such review covers all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management functions.
No material control failure or significant areas of concern or fraud
which might affect the interests of the shareholders of the Company
were identified during the reviews.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Ms. WONG Oi Yee, Polly
has complied with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 30
June 2013.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company regards communication with its shareholders and
investors as an important means to enhance the transparency of the
Group and regularly collects views and feedback from them. To
this end, the Company communicates with its shareholders through
various channels, including annual general meetings, special general
meetings, annual reports, notices of general meetings, circulars sent to
shareholders of the Company, announcements, press releases and other
corporate communications available on the website of the Company.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 14 December
2012 (“AGM?”), the then chairman of the Board and one of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, Dr. SY Robin, were unable
to attend the AGM due to other business engagements. Meanwhile,
management and external auditor of the Company together with the
chairman and members of the Board’s committees attended the AGM
to answer relevant questions raised by and understand the views of
the shareholders of the Company thereat. In respect of the year ended
30 June 2013, an annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on 13 December 2013, at which the Company will arrange for
the Chairmen of the Board and committees of the Board to attend
and answer questions and proposals raised by the shareholders of the
Company thereat.

Details of Directors’ attendance record of general meeting(s) during

the year ended 30 June 2013 are as follows:

Attendance / No. of

general meetings

Directors to be attended

Mr. TAN Harry Chua 0/1
(nominated as Chairman on 8 February

2013)

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank 0/1

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 0/1

Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 0/0

(appointed on 1 April 2013)

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming 0/1
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 1/1
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 1/1
Mr. WONG Sai Tat 1/1
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 1/1
Dr. SY Robin 0/1
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 1/1
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 0/0

(appointed on 8 February 2013)

Mr. CHUA Domingo 0/1
(ceased as Chairman on 8 February 2013
and resigned as Executive Director
on 1 April 2013)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders, investors and the media can make enquiries or proposals
to the Company through the following means:

Telephone:  (852) 2881 5221

Fax: (852) 2881 5224
Post: 17th Floor
Eton Tower

8 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
Website: http://www.dynamic.hk
Email: info@dynamic-hk.com

By virtue of section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 (Bermuda) (as
amended), the procedures for shareholders to convene a special

general meeting and to put forward proposals at general meetings are:

1. The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Bye-laws shall,
on the requisition of member(s) of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
forthwith proceed duly to convene a special general meeting of
the Company.

2. The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the registered office of the Company at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more

requisitionists.

3. If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2013, there were no significant changes
in the Company’s constitutional document, namely, the memorandum
of association and Bye-laws which are posted on the website of the
Company.
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